
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Warrillow, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207064 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

(i) 

 

 

Tuesday, 20 March 2012 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Audit Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 28 March 2012 
 

commencing at 2.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 

 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Hill (Chairman) 

 

Councillor Addis 

Councillor Stringer (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Bent 

 

Councillor Brooksbank 

Councillor Pentney 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



(ii) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Audit Committee held on 18 January 2012 and adjourned meeting 
on 25 January 2012. 
 

3.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of personal interests in respect of items on 
this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their personal interest members and 
officers may remain in the meeting and speak (and, in the case of 
Members, vote on the matter in question).  If the Member’s interest only 
arises because they have been appointed to an outside body by the 
Council (or if the interest is as a member of another public body) then the 
interest need only be declared if the Member wishes to speak and/or vote 
on the matter.  A completed disclosure of interests form should be 
returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of personal prejudicial interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 (Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Democratic 
Services or Legal Services prior to the meeting.  Definitions and 
procedures in relation to interests are set out at the start of the agenda.) 
 

4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Audit Committee Update (Pages 5 - 20) 
 To consider a report which provides the Audit Committee with a 

report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 
auditors. 
 

6.   Audit Plan (Pages 21 - 41) 
 To consider a report which sets out the work for the 2011/12 audit.  

The plan is based on the Audit Commission’s risk-based approach 
to audit planning. 
 

7.   Certification Claims (Pages 42 - 52) 
 To consider a report on how local authorities claim large sums of 

public money in grants and subsidies from central government and 
other grant-paying bodies and are required to complete returns 
providing financial information to government departments.  
 
 



(iii) 

8.   Good Governance Review Autumn 2011 (Pages 53 - 62) 
 To consider a report to inform members and the public of the 

actions resulting from a review of the Council’s Governance 
arrangements.  The resulting action plan will contribute to ensuring 
the Council’s governance arrangements are robust, is part of 
assurance and the production of the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

9.   Covering Report to Audit Committee (Pages 63 - 76) 
 To consider a report on the above. 

 
10.   Future of Public Audit Report to Audit Committee (Pages 77 - 82) 
 To consider a report on the Future of Public Audit. 

 
11.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 To consider passing a resolution to exclude the press and public 

from the meeting prior to consideration of the following item on the 
agenda on the grounds that exempt information (as defined in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)) is 
likely to be disclosed. 
 

12.   Scale of Fraud & Corruption affecting Torbay Council (Pages 83 - 100) 
 To consider an exempt report on the above. 

 



 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Audit Committee 

 
Wednesday, 18 January 2012 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Hill (Chairman) 

 
Councillors Addis, Bent, Brooksbank and Pentney 

 

 
491 Apologies  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Stringer. 
 

492 Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 20 September 2011 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

493 Audit Progress Summary to 29 November 2011  
 
Members noted the summary report from the Audit Commission which set out 
reports that they have issued since the last meeting, such as their unqualified 
opinion on the 2010/11 accounts and unqualified value for money conclusion.  
 

494 Annual Audit Letter  
 
Members noted a report which summarised the findings of the 2010/11 audit 
undertaken by the Audit Commission.  Members were advised that the audit 
comprised two elements firstly the audit of the Council’s financial statements and 
secondly the Audit Commissions assessment of the Council’s arrangements to 
achieve value for money in its use of resources. 
 
Members further noted that the Audit Commission had recently produced a report 
on the implementation of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
which had resulted in an increase in adjustments to the statement of accounts 
across the country a situation which was also reflected by Torbay Council.  
 

495 Audit of System Controls and Financial Statements (including IFRS)  
 
The Audit Committee noted the report which advised Members of the Audit 
Commissions findings of: 
 

• their review of the Council’s key system controls;  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Audit Committee Wednesday, 18 January 2012 
 

 

• their audit of the financial statements and the Whole of Government 
Accounts return; and  

• their work on the implementation and reporting of the Council’s first time 
adoption of the IFRS. 

 
Members paid particular attention and sought reassurance from officers that payroll 
reports which were recommended to be sent to department heads on a monthly 
basis were being sent.  The Executive Head of Finance advised Members that they 
were not being sent on a monthly basis but were being sent quarterly a situation 
which the Audit Commission felt was reasonable.   
 

496 Protecting the Public Purse Checklist  
 
Alun Williams from the Audit Commission informed Members that the intention of 
the checklist was to enable those in charge of governance could satisfy themselves 
that they had in place policies and strategies to prevent fraud. 
 
Members were advised that the greatest areas of fraud were housing benefits, 
abuse of the Council Tax single person discount and sub letting of council 
tenancies.  Members requested the Head of the Devon Audit Partnership complete 
the checklist and report his findings at the next meeting of the Audit Committee on 
28 March 2012. 
 

497 Head of Internal Audit's Six Month Internal Audit Progress Report 2011/2012  
 
Members noted a report which summarised the work undertaken by the Devon 
Audit Partnership (DAP) during the first six months of 2011/12.  The DAP reviews 
the performance and effectiveness of the Internal Audit service and had been able 
to inform Members that overall the DAP were satisfied that there was reasonable 
assurance to the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
environment. 
 
Members were informed that in the first six months of 2011/12  54% of planned 
audits had commenced.  Members paid particular attention to the issue of fraud and 
noted that work associated with the 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative exercise had 
continued throughout the first six months of 2011/12, with 808 high priority matches 
having been investigated.  Members were of the view that more action should be 
taken when it came to highlighting the issue of fraud and suggested activities such 
as posting leaflets which provided real life examples may cause those who are 
thinking of committing fraud to think twice.    
 

498 Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 (Incorporating the Annual Investment 
Strategy 2012/13 and the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement)  
 
The Chairman advised that this item would be deferred until 25 January 2011. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 2



 

 

 
 
 

Minutes of the Audit Committee 

 
Wednesday, 25 January 2012 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Hill (Chairman) 

 
Councillors Addis, Brooksbank and Hytche 

 

 
504 Apologies  

 
It was reported that, in accordance with the wishes of the Conservative Group, the 
membership of the Committee had been amended for this meeting by including 
Councillor Hytche instead of Councillor Bent. 
 

505 Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 (Incorporating the Annual Investment 
Strategy 2012/13 and the Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement)  
 
Members considered a report which set out the Treasury Management Strategy 
(TMS).  The Chief Accountant advised Members that the CIPFA Code of Practice 
required the Council to have TMS with the overall objectives of the TMS to: 
 

• Ensure sufficient funding is available for day-to-day activities and capital 
projects through effective cash flow management; 

• Seek to reduce the impact on the revenue account of net interest costs 
through optimal levels of borrowing and investment levels; and 

• Prioritise control of risks in investing cash and to then achieve maximum 
returns from those investments commensurate with proper levels of security 
and liquidity. 

 
Members were further advised that following significant changes to the Capital 
Investment Plan the current level of borrowing was surplus to the capital financing 
requirements over the medium term.  As a result the proposed borrowing strategy 
was to reduce the level of external borrowing over the next four years by a 
minimum target of £20 million.  The Executive Head Finance advised the 
Committee that the strategy aimed to be flexible as it was felt the previous strategy 
had prevented officers from undertaking certain tasks. 
 
Resolved: 
 

i)  The Treasury Management Strategy for 2012/13 be endorsed and that 
the Council be recommended to: 

 
ii)  that, the Council be recommended in line with the Council’s Constitution 

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1

Page 3



Audit Committee Wednesday, 25 January 2012 
 

 

 

and Financial Regulations: 
 

iii)  that the Chief Finance Officer be authorised to take any decisions on 
borrowing and investments. (Delegations to the Section 151 Officer, 
paragraph 3.1(a)); and 

 
iv)  that the Chief Finance Officer be authorised to invest temporarily or utilise 

surplus monies of the Council; (Financial Regulations, paragraph 14.5); 

 
v)  that the Council be recommended to approve the Annual Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy Statement for 2012/13 as shown in Annex 7 to 
this report. 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



 

Audit
Committee
update
Torbay Unitary Council  

Audit 2011/12 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 

The Audit Commission is a public corporation set up in 

1983 to protect the public purse.

The Commission appoints auditors to councils, NHS 

bodies (excluding NHS Foundation trusts), police 

authorities and other local public services in England, 

and oversees their work. The auditors we appoint are 

either Audit Commission employees (our in-house 

Audit Practice) or one of the private audit firms. Our 

Audit Practice also audits NHS foundation trusts under 

separate arrangements.  

We also help public bodies manage the financial 

challenges they face by providing authoritative, 

unbiased, evidence-based analysis and advice. 

 

Page 6



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 1
 

Contents 

Introduction ........................................................................................................2

Progress report ..................................................................................................3

Opinion on the financial statements..............................................................3

Interim Audit..................................................................................................3

VFM conclusion ............................................................................................3

Other areas of work ......................................................................................4

Government response to consultation on the future of local public audit...5

Other matters of interest ...................................................................................7

2010/11 Accounts .........................................................................................7

Managing Workforce Costs ..........................................................................8

Joining up health and social care .................................................................9

CIPFA's Prudential Code for Capital Finance...............................................9

2011/12 Accounts: CIPFA Guidance Notes for Practitioners......................10

For information: Board Governance Essentials ..........................................10

Local Government Finance Bill ...................................................................11

Key considerations..........................................................................................12

Contact details .................................................................................................13
 

Page 7



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 2
 

Introduction  

1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Audit Committee with a 

report on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 

auditors.  

2 This paper also seeks to highlight key emerging national issues and 

developments which may be of interest to members of the Audit Committee. 

The paper concludes by asking a number of questions which the Committee 

may wish to consider in order to assess whether it has received sufficient 

assurance on emerging issues. 

3 If you require any additional information regarding the issues included 

within this briefing, please feel free to contact me or your Audit Manager 

using the contact details at the end of this update. 

4 Finally, please also remember to visit our website  

(www.audit-commission.gov.uk) which now enables you to sign-up to be 

notified of any new content that is relevant to your type of organisation. 

Alun Williams 

District Auditor  

12 March 2012 

Page 8



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 3
 

Progress report 

Opinion on the financial statements

5 Each audit year we set out our audit approach in an audit plan.  The aim 

of the plan is to ensure that officers and Members have an appropriate 

understanding of how we plan to deliver the audit.  The audit plan also sets 

out our evaluation of the significant areas of audit risk facing the Council. 

These areas will have individual focus during the audit. 

6 The audit plan has been agreed with officers and is included as an 

agenda item for this meeting.  We continue to discuss the delivery of the 

audit with officers on an on-going basis. 

Interim Audit 

7 Auditing standards require us to make an assessment of the key 

financial and other information systems which underpin your financial 

statements.  This is in order to assess their reliability as a basis for 

preparing the accounts. 

8 We undertake an interim audit to test these systems and also undertake 

as much early substantive work as possible to reduce the impact of the 

audit on the Council’s staff later in the year.  In addition to this we also 

undertake a separate IT risk assessment. 

9 The interim audit is currently on-going and we will report our findings 

back to the Audit Committee once our work is completed. 

10 As part of the interim audit we seek to rely on the work of Internal Audit 

where appropriate.  This helps avoid duplication of effort and minimises 

audit fees.  

VFM conclusion

11 The Audit Commission introduced a new approach to value for money 

work in 2010/11.  The VFM conclusion is now based on two nationally 

specified criteria:- 

! The organisation has proper arrangements in place for securing 

financial resilience; and 

! The organisation has proper arrangements for challenging how it 

secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

12 Our review of the Council’s arrangements is currently being undertaken. 

Page 9



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 4
 

Other areas of work 

13 We have prepared a grants report which sets out the findings from our 

reviews of the Council’s grant claims during 2010/11.  This report is included 

as an agenda item for this meeting. 

Page 10



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 5
 

Government response to consultation on the 
future of local public audit 

14 In August 2010, the government announced its intention to bring 

forward legislation to abolish the Audit Commission and put in place a new 

framework for local public audit. In March 2011, the government published a 

consultation paper and, in January 2012, announced its response to the 

consultation to which it received 453 responses, the majority from audited 

bodies. 

15 The Audit Commission is currently in the process of awarding contracts 

for the work currently undertaken by the Audit Practice for the period 

2012/13 to 2016/17. The government envisages the retention of the Audit 

Commission as a small residuary body until the end of those contracts, to 

oversee them and to make any necessary changes to individual audit 

appointments.  

16 Thereafter, the government proposes that a new local public audit 

regime will apply. The key features of that regime are as follows. 

! The National Audit Office will be responsible for developing and 

maintaining audit codes of practice and providing support to auditors. 

! Mirroring the Companies Act provisions, auditors will be subject to the 

overall regulation of the Financial Reporting Council (the FRC). The 

FRC will authorise one or more Recognised Supervisory Bodies (in 

practice, the professional institutes) to register and supervise audit firms 

and engagement leads. 

! Directly-elected local government bodies will appoint their own auditor 

on the advice of an independent audit appointment panel with a majority 

of independent members. Such panels may be shared between audited 

bodies;  

! Audited bodies must run a procurement exercise for their external audit 

appointment at least every five years, although there would be no bar 

on the reappointment of the incumbent audit firm (for a maximum of one 

further five-year term); 

! Audited bodies will be able to remove their auditor, but only after due 

process, involving the independent audit appointment panel and 

culminating in a public statement of the reasons for the decision. 

! The audit will continue to cover arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness, but without imposing further burdens on 

audited bodies. There will be further consultation on the approach to 

value for money. 

! The power to issue a public interest report will be retained. 

! Audit firms will be able to provide non-audit services to audited bodies, 

subject to complying with ethical standards and gaining approval from 

the independent auditor appointment panel. 

Page 11



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 6
 

! The right to object would be retained, but the auditor will be given the 

power to reject vexatious, repeated or frivolous objections. 

! Grant certification will be subject to separate arrangements between 

grant paying bodies, audited bodies and reporting accountants (who 

could be the external auditors). 

! The National Fraud Initiative will continue. Discussions on how this will 

be achieved are ongoing. 

17 The government is holding further discussions with audited bodies and 

audit firms to develop its proposals. The Regional Improvement and 

Efficiency Partnerships are organising events in January and February 2012 

to which audited bodies have been invited. The government intends to 

publish draft legislation for pre-legislative scrutiny in Spring 2012. 

Page 12



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 7
 

Other matters of interest 

2010/11 Accounts 
 

18 In December 2011 the Audit Commission published a report - Auditing 

the Accounts 2010/11 - which summarises its findings of the accounts 

audits in 2010/11.  

19 The report covers the quality and timeliness of financial reporting by 

councils, police authorities, fire and rescue authorities and other local public 

bodies. In addition to auditors' work on the 2010/11 financial statements, the 

report also covers: 

! the results of the first year of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) implementation;  

! auditors' work on the Whole of Government Accounts returns;  

! auditors' local value for money work;  

! public interest reports and statutory recommendations issued by 

auditors since December 2010; and  

! the key challenges facing bodies for 2011/12.  

20 Auditors were able to give opinions on the accounts by the target date 

of 30 September 2011 at most organisations and this performance 

compares well with the previous year.  

21 However, the challenges presented by the transition to IFRS are 

demonstrated by an increase in the number of bodies, from seven last year 

to eighteen this year, where the auditor's opinion was still outstanding after 

31 October. There was also a significant increase in the number of bodies 

needing to make material adjustments to their accounts following the audit. 

22 On 18 January 2012, the Audit Commission published ‘Let’s be clear: 

Making local authority IFRS accounts more accessible and understandable’. 

23 This briefing supplements the report on the 2010/11 accounts referred 

to above and focuses on a long-running debate of how to make local 

government accounts easier to understand. 

24 While the statutory accounts give comprehensive information on each 

local authority’s financial position and performance, reflecting the range of 

activities which they cover, they are a poor way of communicating the key 

information to lay readers.  

25 The briefing notes that: 

! elected members and local people would benefit from having access to 

well-presented extracts from the accounts, which would provide the key 

information on each authority’s financial position and performance; 

Page 13



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 8
 

! the accounting profession and the Audit Commission could do more to 

encourage auditors and preparers of accounts to reduce clutter in 

statutory accounts; and 

! each authority could do more to ensure their accounts are shorter and 

more accessible. Those preparing accounts need to look critically at the 

previous year’s accounts. They should identify how these accounts 

could be sharper and more focused before starting work on the next set. 

26 The briefing concludes by identifying possible steps to make local 

authority accounts more accessible and easier to understand, and the 

implications of doing so. 

27 This briefing has been shared with relevant officers at the Council. 

Managing Workforce Costs 

28 The Audit Commission and Local Government Association have jointly 

launched 'Work in progress: Meeting local needs with lower workforce 

costs'.  

29 The joint report - which can be found on the Audit Commission's 

website - is aimed at councils as employers and shows how local authorities 

across England are reducing their workforce costs, with some finding 

creative solutions. 

30 As government funding for councils shrinks by over a quarter between 

2011/12 and 2014/15, councils need to reduce their workforce costs 

substantially while still providing much needed services. Not all councils 

face the same financial challenges, but the message is that all must 

reassess what they do, how they do it, and what their priorities are. Those 

opting for major restructuring will take more time to realise savings. 

31 Councils are finding ways to cut their pay bills without losing jobs, but 

the report says that redundancies are inevitable. Local government was 

already reducing posts before the cuts in government funding. In the past 

year an estimated 145,000 jobs have gone and this figure will increase in 

the future. So far many redundancies have been voluntary, but the report 

warns that compulsory ones are set to rise.  

32 The report is supported by a number of resources including: 

! an agency workers expenditure tool which shows councils how much 

they spend on agency workers, compared with groups of similar 

councils;  

! a workforce expenditure tool which shows councils how much they 

spend on staff as a proportion of their net current expenditure, and how 

this has changed over time;  

! five case studies which provide examples of the different approaches 

councils are taking to reduce the costs of employing people while 

protecting valuable services. The case studies show what the councils 

did and why - and the benefits achieved; and 

Page 14



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 9
 

! a practical guide on how to undertake effective pay benchmarking, 

providing a series of steps to follow when starting a pay benchmarking 

process and highlighting the main issues that should be considered. 

33 The report is supplemented with a briefing for elected members that 

includes a number of questions designed to help members assess how well 

their council decides the size, shape and cost of its workforce and how 

these decisions will affect services and communities.  

34 The questions are in two parts:  

! the information that should be available to members about the 

workforce; and  

! the savings strategies councils could follow in the light of that 

information.  

Joining up health and social care 

35 On 1 December 2011 the Audit Commission published the second in a 

series of briefings looking at adult social care. 

36 'Joining Up Health and Social Care - Improving Value for Money Across 

the Interface' shows significant variations in indicators such as the levels of 

emergency admissions to hospital. This raises questions about how well 

services are being integrated to meet the preferences of older people. 

Despite the focus for many years on improving joint working across the NHS 

and social care, progress remains patchy. 

37 At a time when the whole of the public sector must find significant 

savings, the report says that integrated working offers opportunities for 

efficiencies and improvements to services. Without it, there is a risk of 

duplication and ‘cost-shunting’ - where savings made by one organisation or 

sector simply create costs for others.  

38 The briefing offers guidance to local partnerships, setting out a list of 

questions to consider and suggestions for interventions that might help. The 

briefing also includes a number of case studies which show how some 

areas have embraced partnership working and used local data and 

benchmarking to establish how and where to make improvements.  

39 The Audit Commission has developed a tool to accompany the briefing 

that allows NHS and social care partnerships to benchmark their 

performance against others.  

CIPFA's Prudential Code for Capital Finance 

40 CIPFA has recently updated its Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 

Local Authorities. This new version reflects the introduction of IFRS which 

required: 

! PFI schemes to be included on organisations' balance sheets; and

! The accounting treatment of leases to be reviewed – with many more 

likely to be considered as finance leases and thus also included on the 

relevant balance sheets.

Page 15



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 10
 

41 Although local authorities determine their own capital programmes, they 

are required to have regard to CIPFA's Prudential Code (the Code) in order 

to ensure that these capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 

sustainable. 

42 To demonstrate that these objectives have been met, the Code sets out 

the indicators that must be used and the factors that must be taken into 

account.  

43 The Code does not include suggested indicative limits or ratios and 

these are for the local authority to set itself, subject to some overriding 

controls. 

44 The prudential indicators required by the Code should be considered 

alongside its Treasury Management performance indicators. These 

indicators are both are designed to support and record local decision 

making and are not designed to be comparative performance indicators.  

2011/12 Accounts: CIPFA Guidance Notes for 
Practitioners

45 CIPFA has recently published a set of guidance notes to provide 

support in preparing the 2011/12 year-end accounts. These offer 

constructive advice on all aspects of the requirements for 2011/12 and 

provide detailed guidance on the key changes, including accounting for: 

! heritage assets; 

! business rate supplements; 

! community infrastructure levies; 

! related party disclosures; 

! exit packages; 

! trust funds; 

! financial instruments; and 

! interests in joint ventures.  

46 The key changes to the financial statements in 2011/12 were covered 

by our final accounts workshops, which the Council attended. 

 

For information: Board Governance Essentials 

47 The Public Chairs’ Forum and CIPFA have recently published a joint 

‘how to’ guide for Chairs and Boards of public bodies. 

48 'Board Governance Essentials: A Guide for Chairs and Boards of Public 

Bodies' offers advice across four key areas. 

! Good corporate governance. 

! Roles, responsibilities and relationships. 

! Standards of behaviour in public life. 

! Effective financial management and transparency. 

49 This guide may provide interesting reading for all members.  

Page 16



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 11
 

Local Government Finance Bill 

50 In December 2011 the government introduced proposals to devolve 

greater financial powers and freedoms to councils. The Local Government 

Finance Bill sets out the legislative foundations to implement the changes 

from April 2013. The most significant proposals relate to non-domestic 

rates, which are currently pooled and redistributed nationally. 

51 The Bill provides for councils to: 

! retain a portion of their business rate growth; 

! borrow against future income from business rates to pay for roads and 

transport projects alongside other local priorities; 

! ensure a stable starting point for all authorities. No authority will be 

worse off as a result of their business rates base at the start of the 

scheme; 

! establish a national baseline alongside a system of top ups and tariffs. 

Councils with business rates in excess of a set baseline would pay a 

tariff to government whilst those below would get an individually 

assessed top up from government; and 

! create a levy to take back a share of growth from those councils that 

gain disproportionately from the changes. This money would be used to 

fund a safety net providing financial help to those authorities which 

experience significant drops in business rates, for example caused by 

the closure or relocation of a major business. 

52 The Bill provides for much of the detail of the arrangements, including 

the sharing of business rate growth between billing and precepting 

authorities, to be left to secondary legislation. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 17



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 12
 

Key considerations 

53 The Audit Committee may wish to consider the following questions in 

respect of the issues highlighted in this briefing paper.  

! Has the Council reviewed the Audit Commission's report on the 2010/11 

accounts and, in particular, considered the key challenges facing bodies 

for 2011/12? 

! Has the Council reviewed its 2010/11 accounts and identified ways in 

which these could be streamlined or clarified? 

! Has the Council reviewed the Audit Commission / Local Government 

Association joint report on managing workforce costs and is the Audit 

Committee satisfied that appropriate use has been made of the 

supporting materials? 

! Has the Council circulated the briefing for elected members on the Audit 

Commission's workforce report to Members? Is the Audit Committee 

satisfied that the questions within the briefing have been properly 

considered by the Council? 

! Has the Council reviewed the questions included in the Audit 

Commission's briefing paper on joining up health and social care? 

! Has the Council used the Audit Commission's tool to benchmark the 

performance of its NHS and social care partnership?  

! Has the Council reviewed its prudential indicators in the light of CIPFA's 

revised prudential code? 

! Has the Council reviewed CIPFA's guidance notes for the 2011/12 

financial statements and made satisfactory arrangements for their 

implementation? 

Page 18



 

Audit Commission Audit Committee update 13
 

Contact details 

54 If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, please 

feel free to contact either your District Auditor or Audit Manager. 

55 Alternatively, all Audit Commission reports - and a wealth of other 

material - can be found on our website: www.audit-commission.gov.uk. 

  

Alun Williams 

District Auditor 

0844 798 5603 

07909 936 177 

al-williams@audit-commission.gov.uk 

 

Sue Hick 

Audit Manager 

0844 798 1203 

07779 576 518 

s-hick@audit-commission.gov.uk 

Page 19



 

If you require a copy of this document in an alternative 
format or in a language other than English, please call: 
0844 798 7070 

© Audit Commission 2012. 

Design and production by the Audit Commission Publishing Team. 

Image copyright © Audit Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by 

the Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors 

and of the audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are 

addressed to non-executive directors, members or officers. They are 

prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no 

responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.  

 

 

 

Audit Commission 

1st Floor 

Millbank Tower 

Millbank 

London 

SW1P 4HQ 

Telephone: 0844 798 3131 

Fax: 0844 798 2945 

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk March 2012

 

Page 20



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
T

o
rb

a
y
 U

n
it

a
ry

 C
o

u
n

c
il
  

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 21



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
2

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 (

W
G

A
).

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.4

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 (

W
G

A
).

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.4

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8

K
e

y
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

0
K

e
y
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

0

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

1
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it

 t
e

a
m

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

1

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

2
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

2

F
e

e
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

3
F

e
e

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

3

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v

it
y

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

5
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
it

y
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 B

a
s

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

1
7

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 B

a
s

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

1
7

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

8
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

s
s

a
ry

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

8

C
o

n
te

n
ts

          

Page 22



In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

u
d

it
. 
T

h
e
 p

la
n

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

ri
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
n

in
g

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
f 
A

u
d

it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d
y
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

. 
 

T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d
y
 b

e
g

in
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
 a

n
d

 I
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 

I 
c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r:
 

!
 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

; 
a

n
d
  

!
 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s
. 

 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
lie

v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

a
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
3

 

Page 23



A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 
(W

G
A

)
I 
w

il
l 
c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
U

K
 a

n
d

 I
re

la
n

d
) 

is
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti

c
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

 (
A

P
B

).
 I
 a

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 
is

s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 g
iv

in
g

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 
 

M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
  

I 
w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
c
e

p
t 
o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
, 

in
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

 f
o

rm
in

g
 m

y
 

o
p

in
io

n
. 

 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
  

I 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 r

is
k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
(w

h
e

th
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

 o
r 

e
rr

o
r)

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
I 

d
o

 t
h

is
 b

y
: 

!
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
o

w
n

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
; 

!
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

; 
 

!
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 I

T
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
; 

a
n

d
  

!
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ri

s
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
u

t 
b
e

lo
w

. 
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
4

 

Page 24



 T
a

b
le

 1
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

 
 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s

s
u

re
s

 

A
s
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 s
e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 i
n

 s
e

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
, 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
, 

fr
e

e
z
e

 o
n

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

la
ry

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 o

f 
e

x
tr

e
m

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u

re
, 

th
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

r 

in
e

v
it
a

b
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
ri

s
k
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

to
 m

is
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

 

 I 
w

ill
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

  

I 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

m
a

te
ri

a
lly

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 s

ta
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
; 

te
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
y
e

a
r;

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 

e
n

tr
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
o

n
e

-o
ff

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

G
ro

u
p

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
/c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

e
x
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 g
ro

u
p

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 

I 
w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

ro
u

p
 e

n
ti
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

m
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u

p
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ts

 l
e

g
a

l,
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
. 

I 
w

ill
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 

g
ro

u
p

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 

I 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 m
a

te
ri

a
lly

 c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 s

ta
te

d
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
5

 

Page 25



T
e

s
ti

n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
: 

!
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

-p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
; 

!
 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

; 
 

!
 

re
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
; 

!
 

re
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

e
x
p

e
rt

s
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ts

 o
f 

d
e

ta
il 

o
f 

tr
a

n
s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

to
: 

 

!
 

m
a

x
im

is
e

 r
e

lia
n

c
e

, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

-p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
o

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
; 

a
n
d

 

!
 

m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 y

o
u

 p
re

p
a

re
 y

o
u

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

T
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 a

n
d

 t
im

in
g

 o
f 

m
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
. 

T
a

b
le

 2
: 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 w

o
rk

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

te
s

ti
n

g

R
e

li
a

n
c

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

R
e

li
a

n
c

e
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

e
x

p
e

rt
s

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v

e
 t

e
s

ti
n

g
 

In
te

ri
m

 

v
is

it
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g

e
r 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g

e
r 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

ra
n

s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
  

In
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
) 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ro
u

p
 e

n
ti
ti
e

s
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

. 

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
6

 

Page 26



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
7

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

te
s

ti
n

g

R
e

li
a

n
c

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 

a
u

d
it

o
rs

R
e

li
a

n
c

e
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

e
x

p
e

rt
s

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v

e
 t

e
s

ti
n

g
 

F
in

a
l 

v
is

it
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 –
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 a

s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 –

 

a
u

d
it
o

r 
to

 D
e

v
o

n
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
e

ts
 –

 D
e
v
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ry

 

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
–

C
h

ie
f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
V

a
lu

e
r 

 

A
ll 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

  

A
ll 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

Y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 f

e
e

d
e

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

s
  

 I 
w

ill
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
 a

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 (
W

G
A

) 

A
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

re
tu

rn
. 

T
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

m
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
m

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
re

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

Page 27



V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

I 
a
m

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 r
e
a
c
h

 a
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
. 

 

M
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
w

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r:
 

!
 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 –
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 i
ts

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

 s
ta

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

fo
re

s
e

e
a

b
le

 f
u

tu
re

; 
a

n
d

 

!
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 –

 f
o

c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 i
ts

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 

ti
g

h
te

r 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 m

y
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
I 

w
ill

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

m
y
 w

o
rk

. 

T
a

b
le

 3
:  

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
s

 
 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 f
a

c
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
u

ts
 i
n

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t,
 a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fa
c
e

s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 

it
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 

y
e

a
rs

. 

 I 
w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
. 

I 
w

ill
 g

a
in

 a
n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
. 

I 
w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

p
la

n
s
. 

 N
o

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
8

 

Page 28



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
9

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

la
n
s
 o

r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
. 

 

 

  

Page 29



K
e

y
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
s

 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 b
y
 3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
. 

I 
a

im
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

 

T
a

b
le

 4
:  

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

 

A
c

ti
v

it
y
 

D
a

te
O

u
tp

u
t

A
u

d
it
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
s
 

3
1

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 
O

p
in

io
n

 a
u

d
it
 p

la
n

 

O
p

in
io

n
: 

c
o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 

2
9

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 
In

te
ri

m
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

O
p

in
io

n
: 

re
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 

3
0

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

 
N

/A
 

O
p

in
io

n
: 

s
u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 
N

/A
 

P
re

s
e

n
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

1
9

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

Is
s
u

e
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

A
u

d
it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

  

S
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 L

e
tt

e
r 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

0
 

Page 30



T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
 

T
h

e
 k

e
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
u

d
it
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
. 

T
a

b
le

 5
: 

A
u

d
it

 t
e

a
m

 
 

N
a

m
e

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

d
e

ta
il

s
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

A
lu

n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r 

a
l-

w
ill

ia
m

s
@

a
u

d
it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 5

6
0

3
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
, 

s
ig

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 

S
u

e
 H

ic
k
 

A
u

d
it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

s
-h

ic
k
@

a
u

d
it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 1

2
0

3
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
s
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 

w
o

rk
. 

K
e

y
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

. 

S
tu

a
rt

 H
o

lm
e

s
 

T
e

a
m

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

s
-h

o
lm

e
s
@

a
u

d
it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 1

2
5

4
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

. 
K

e
y
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

1
 

Page 31



In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 

I 
c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

th
ic

a
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
P

B
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

s
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

d
 i
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 t
h

a
t 

m
a

y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 t
e

a
m

 o
r 

m
e

, 
th

a
t 

I 
a

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

b
y
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 y
o

u
. 

 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 

I 
a

im
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 y

o
u

 w
it
h

 a
 f

u
lly

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
If

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 y

o
u

 a
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 a
n

y
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 m

e
 a

n
d

 m
y
 t

e
a

m
 p

le
a

s
e

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

C
h

ri
s
 W

e
s
tw

o
o

d
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
–

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 &

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l,
 A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

1
s
t 

F
lo

o
r,

 M
ill

b
a

n
k
 T

o
w

e
r,

 M
ill

b
a

n
k
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 S
W

1
P

 4
H

Q
  

( c
-w

e
s
tw

o
o

d
@

a
u

d
it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
) 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 i
n

to
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

p
ro

m
p

tl
y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
o

 w
h

a
t 

h
e

 c
a

n
 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 y
o

u
 m

a
y
 o

f 
c
o

u
rs

e
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 m

a
tt

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

W
e

s
tw

a
rd

 H
o

u
s
e

, 
L

im
e

 K
iln

 C
lo

s
e

, 
S

to
k
e

 G
if
fo

rd
, 

B
ri

s
to

l 
B

S
3

4
 8

S
R

).
 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

2
 

Page 32



F
e

e
s

T
h

e
 f

e
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i

s
 £

2
2

5
,0

0
0

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 m
y
 l

e
tt

e
r 

o
f 

1
1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

. 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
 s

c
a

le
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e
 o

f 
£

2
2

5
,0

0
0
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
 1

0
%

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 
 

T
h

e
 s

c
a

le
 f

e
e

 c
o

v
e

rs
: 

 

!
 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 [
a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 r

e
tu

rn
];

 a
n

d
  

!
 

m
y
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 

T
h

e
 s

c
a

le
 f

e
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

: 

!
 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 n
o

t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
e

e
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
; 

 

!
 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
V

F
M

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

; 
a
n

d
  

!
 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

n
e

-o
ff

 w
o

rk
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t-

ti
m

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
in

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 (

IF
R

S
).

  
 V

a
ri

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

c
a

le
 f

e
e

 o
n

ly
 o

c
c
u

r 
w

h
e

re
 m

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

o
s
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 f
e

e
. 
I 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
e

t 
th

e
 f

e
e

 e
q

u
a

l 
to

 t
h
e

 s
c
a

le
 f

e
e

. 
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

A
u

d
it
 p

la
n

 
1

3
 

Page 33



A
s

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

In
 s

e
tt

in
g

 t
h
e

 f
e

e
, 

I 
h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 a
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
e

t,
 I

 m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 m
o

re
 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

. 
W

h
e
re

 t
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e

, 
I 

w
ill

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
is

 f
ir

s
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

 w
ill

 i
s
s
u
e

 a
 s

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 

p
la

n
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 a

n
y
 r

e
v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

. 

T
o

ta
l 

fe
e

s
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

ill
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 f

e
e
s
 f

o
r:

 

!
 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 p
o

w
e

rs
. 

 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 t
h

e
 f

e
e

s
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 a
re

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
.  

T
a

b
le

 6
:  

F
e

e
s

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
c

tu
a

l 

A
u

d
it
 

£
2

2
5

,0
0

0
 

£
2

5
0

,0
0

0
 

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 

£
 3

6
,0

0
0

 (
e

s
ti
m

a
te

) 
£

 3
0

,6
6

6
 

T
o

ta
l

£
2

5
6

,0
0

0
£

2
8

0
,6

6
6

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

4
 

Page 34



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
it

y
  

 
 

 
 

 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 m

u
s
t 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 S

ta
n

d
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
. 
W

h
e

n
 

a
u

d
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

, 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 m

u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
P

B
).

 T
h

e
s
e

 

im
p

o
s
e

 s
tr

in
g

e
n

t 
ru

le
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 p
u

ts
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

’s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
–

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l,
 w

h
o

 s
e

rv
e

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

’s
 E

th
ic

s
 

P
a

rt
n

e
r.

 

T
a

b
le

 7
:  

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v

it
y
 

 

A
re

a
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
H

o
w

 w
e

 c
o

m
p

ly
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

A
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
v
o

id
 a

n
y
 o

ff
ic

ia
l,
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
, 

o
r 

c
o

u
ld

 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

 p
e

rc
e

iv
e

d
 t

o
, 

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
m

 i
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 o

r 

u
n

ju
s
ti
fi
a

b
ly

 t
o

 l
im

it
 t

h
e

 s
c
o

p
e

, 
e

x
te

n
t 

o
r 

ri
g

o
u

r 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 w
o

rk
 o

r 

im
p

a
ir

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t.
  

T
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
a
n

d
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 t

e
a

m
 m

u
s
t 

n
o

t 
ta

k
e

 p
a

rt
 i
n

 p
o

lit
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
p

a
rt

y
, 

o
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 

in
te

re
s
t 

g
ro

u
p

, 
w

h
o

s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 r

e
la

te
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 

lo
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
N

H
S

 b
o

d
ie

s
 i
n

 g
e

n
e

ra
l,
 o

r 
to

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

lo
c
a

l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
N

H
S

 b
o

d
y
. 

 

A
ll 

a
u

d
it
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

c
la

re
 a

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

th
re

a
ts

 t
o

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

W
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

o
r 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
to

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
ly

 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l.
  

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

5
 

Page 35



 

A
re

a
R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
H

o
w

 w
e

 c
o

m
p

ly
 

L
o

n
g

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
u

d
it
 

c
lie

n
ts

 

T
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

, 
in

 a
ll 

b
u

t 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
, 

b
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e
d

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n
c
e

 

e
v
e

ry
 s

e
v
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
, 

w
it
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

re
a

ts
 t

o
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 a
ft

e
r 

fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

rs
 a

 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 o
f 

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 

s
e

n
io

r 
a

u
d

it
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

is
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 

m
e

t.
 

G
if
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
 

T
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
e

a
m

 m
u

s
t 

a
b

id
e

 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
’s

 p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 g

if
ts

, 
h

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
rt

a
in

m
e

n
t.

 

A
ll 

a
u

d
it
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

c
la

re
 a

n
y
 g

if
ts

 o
r 

h
o

s
p

it
a

lit
y
 i
rr

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
. 

G
if
ts

 a
n

d
 H

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y
 m

a
y
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 w

it
h

 l
in

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l.
  

N
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 
A

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

n
 

a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d
y
 (

th
a

t 
is

 w
o

rk
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
) 

if
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
r 

m
ig

h
t 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 p
e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
ir

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

d
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 s

h
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p

t 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
fi
rs

t 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
. 

W
o

rk
 o

v
e

r 
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 v

a
lu

e
 m

u
s
t 

o
n

ly
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ri

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

o
lic

y
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

 

A
ll 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
b

y
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
–

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l,
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

d
. 

 

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 S

ta
n

d
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 A

P
B

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

6
 

Page 36



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 B

a
s

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

  
 

 
In

 s
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
e

e
, 

I 
h

a
v
e

 a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

. 

!
 

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
to

 t
h

a
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
: 

!
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
; 

a
n

d
 

!
I 

s
e

c
u

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
; 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

y
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
to

 t
h

a
t 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
. 

!
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 m

e
e

ts
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

!
 

[I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
ll 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I

 c
a

n
 r

e
ly

. 

!
 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
: 

 

!
g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
e

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
; 

 

!
o

th
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
; 

 

!
p

ro
m

p
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
k
e

d
 o

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
e

le
c
to

rs
. 

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

m
e

t,
 I

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 m
o

re
 w

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

. 
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

7
 

Page 37



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
A

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 p

re
p

a
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
 (

E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e

tt
e

r 
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
a

t 
s
u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
’ 
w

o
rk

. 
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

is
s
u

e
s
 t
h

e
ir

 o
p

in
io

n
 [

a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
].
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
th

a
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
a

n
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

s
 a

ll 
w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 
 

A
u

d
it

e
d

 b
o

d
y
  

A
 b

o
d

y
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
o

in
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

r.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

8
 

Page 38



A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
P

B
)

T
h

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 f

o
r 

is
s
u

in
g

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

e
th

ic
a
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

It
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

P
ro

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 A
P

B
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
 b

a
s
ic

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 m

u
s
t 
c
o

m
p

ly
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
. 

 

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s
)

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 

C
o

d
e

 (
th

e
)

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t.
  

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 (
th

e
)

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
 

E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

P
ro

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 A
P

B
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
 b

a
s
ic

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
in

te
g

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a

t 
a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
a

u
d

it
s
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
u

d
it
o
rs

 m
u

s
t 

c
o

m
p

ly
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
re

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e
d

. 
 

G
ro

u
p

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
  

C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
u

b
s
id

ia
ri
e

s
, 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
s
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
tl
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 e
n

ti
ti
e

s
. 

In
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l

T
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 

in
te

rn
a

l 
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
1

9
 

Page 39



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 
2

0
 M

a
te

ri
a

li
ty

  

T
h

e
 A

P
B

 d
e

fi
n

e
s
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e

p
t 

a
s
 ‘
a

n
 e

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

m
a

tt
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
A

 m
a

tt
e

r 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
a

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r’
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

; 
lik

e
w

is
e

 a
 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
it
e

m
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
m

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
a

p
a

b
le

 o
f 

g
e
n

e
ra

l 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a

l 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
, 

a
s
 i
t 
h

a
s
 b

o
th

 q
u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

’.
  

T
h

e
 t

e
rm

 ‘
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
u

ti
e
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
ta

tu
te

, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 d

o
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ri
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
ir

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
c

e

T
h

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
t 
o

f 
‘s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e

’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
u
d

it
o

rs
 a

d
o

p
t 
a

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l 

a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

o
th

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
n

ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

. 
 

T
h

o
s

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

T
h

o
s
e

 e
n

tr
u
s
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

, 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

T
h

is
 t

e
rm

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 

le
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 a
 s

e
t 
o

f 
c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 U
K

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

u
s
t 

s
u

b
m

it
 a

 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o
n

 p
a

c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
, 

b
u

t 
s
e

p
a

ra
te

 f
ro

m
, 

it
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

   

Page 40



If
 y

o
u

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

r 
in

 a
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
a

ll:
  

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 7

0
7

0
 

©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

2
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

n
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

: 

!
 

a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

r/
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
; 

o
r 

 

!
 

a
n

y
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
. 

 

           

 
 

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v

.u
k

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 

  

Page 41



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
1

 C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 

re
tu

rn
s
 -

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 

T
o

rb
a
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
  

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 42



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

m
y
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.4

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.6

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
8

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

0
      

Page 43



In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
L

o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 c

la
im

 l
a
rg

e
 s

u
m

s
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
n

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

s
id

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 

g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

g
ra

n
t-

p
a
y
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
. 
M

y
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 t

o
 

g
ra

n
t-

p
a
y
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

s
id

ie
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 o

r 
th

a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

in
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

tu
rn

s
 i
s
 r

e
li
a
b

le
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
m

y
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 

y
o

u
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
tu

rn
s
. 

U
n

d
e

r 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 2

8
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

, 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 m

a
y
, 

a
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

o
f 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 
m

a
k
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
e

rt
if
y
in

g
 c

la
im

s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t.
 W

h
e

re
 s

u
c
h

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
, 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 

is
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 i
ts

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 m

u
s
t 

d
o

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
y
 g

iv
e

 t
h

e
ir

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

. 
T

h
e

 w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d
 v

a
ri

e
s
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

g
ra

n
t-

p
a

y
in

g
 b

o
d

y
, 

b
u

t 
in

 b
ro

a
d

 t
e

rm
s
: 

!
 

fo
r 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 b

e
lo

w
 £

1
2

5
,0

0
0

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
a

k
e

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 I
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 w
o

rk
; 

!
 

fo
r 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 £

1
2

5
,0

0
0

 a
n

d
 £

5
0

0
,0

0
0

, 
I 

u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 l
im

it
e

d
 t

e
s
ts

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 f
o

rm
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
, 

b
u

t 
d

id
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 

a
n

y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

fo
r 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

0
,0

0
0

 I
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

la
im

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 t

o
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
o

r 
n

o
t 

to
 p

la
c
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e

 o
n

 i
t.

 D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

a
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 I

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 f
o

rm
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 

th
e

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
d
a

ta
. 

I 
m

u
s
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 t

h
ir

d
 y

e
a

r 
re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
I 

h
a

v
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

. 

C
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 I
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
. 

M
y
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 m
a
y
 a

ls
o

 r
e

fe
r 

to
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

h
e

re
 

th
e

re
 i
s
 d

is
a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

, 
o

r 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
.

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
3

 

Page 44



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

m
y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 
1

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 i
ts

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
. 

T
a

b
le

 1
: 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
la

im
s

 q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 -

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 
 

A
u

d
it

 Y
e

a
r 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
s

 c
e

rt
if

ie
d

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

la
im

s
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 

q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 l
e

tt
e

r 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
s

 c
e

rt
if

ie
d

 w
it

h
 

q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 l
e

tt
e

r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
5

 
2

 
3

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
5

 
3

 
2

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
5

 
4

 
1

 
 2

T
h

e
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r 
is

s
u

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1

0
/1

1
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 o

u
r 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ile

 N
o
n

 H
R

A
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
la

im
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r.

 T
h

is
 w

a
s
 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 l
e

d
g

e
r 

to
 p

ri
v
a

te
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 n
o

t 
e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

N
o

n
 H

R
A

 

re
n

t 
re

b
a

te
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
la

im
. 

3
W

e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

la
im

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

o
v
e

rs
ta

te
d

 a
s
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 p

e
r 

th
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g
e

r 
w

a
s
 £

2
4

,3
7

0
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 c

la
im

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

v
e

 s
ta

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
, 

a
s
 t

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ri

v
a

te
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

th
e

r 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
4

 

Page 45



T
a

b
le

 2
: 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 

 

T
o

ta
l 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 

£
1

2
5

 m
ill

io
n
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 e

rr
o

rs
 

0
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 w

h
e

re
 I

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 d

is
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n

t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 o
r 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 

1
 

T
o

ta
l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 
£

3
0

,6
6

6
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
5

 

Page 46



R
e

s
u

lt
s

 o
f 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

w
o

rk
T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
m

y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
ts

 t
h

e
 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
. 

 T
a

b
le

 3
: 

C
la

im
s

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s

 a
b

o
v

e
 £

5
0

0
,0

0
0

 
 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c

la
im

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 (

£
’)

 

W
a

s
 r

e
li

a
n

c
e

 p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t?

 

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 

W
a

s
 a

 q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 

le
tt

e
r 

is
s

u
e

d
?

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

£
7

9
,3

4
3

k
  

Y
e

s
 

N
/A

 
Y

e
s
 –

 I
s
s
u

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 

p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 2

 a
b

o
v
e

. 

T
e

a
c
h

e
rs

' 
p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 r

e
tu

rn
 

£
7

,8
8

8
k
  

Y
e

s
 

N
/A

 
N

o
 

S
u

re
 s

ta
rt

, 
e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 

c
h

ild
c
a

re
 

£
5

,8
5

9
k
  

Y
e

s
 

N
/A

 
N

o
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

o
n

-d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 

re
tu

rn
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

o
o

l 

£
3

1
,4

2
6

k
 

 

Y
e

s
 

N
/A

 
N

o
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
6

 

Page 47



T
a

b
le

 4
: 

C
la

im
s

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 £
1

2
5

,0
0

0
 a

n
d

 £
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c

la
im

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 (

£
’)

 

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 
Q

u
a

li
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

£
4

9
5

k
 

N
/A

 
N

o
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
7

 

Page 48



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 
p

re
v

io
u

s
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 I
 h

a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 

m
a
d

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
. 

 T
a

b
le

 5
: 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 m
a

d
e

 o
n

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

y
e

a
rs

 
 

A
g

re
e

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
D

a
te

 f
o

r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

C
u

rr
e

n
t

s
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 -
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 1
 -

 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 t

a
x

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

s
c

h
e

m
e

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 r
e

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
ra

u
d

 t
e
a

m
 i
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

H
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e

r 
&

 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

v
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
. 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
8

 

Page 49



 

A
g

re
e

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
D

a
te

 f
o

r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

C
u

rr
e

n
t

s
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 -
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 2
 -

 

T
e

a
c

h
e

rs
' 
P

e
n

s
io

n
s

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
u

d
it
 t

ra
il 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 

p
a

y
ro

ll 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

la
im

. 
T

h
e

 

a
u

d
it
 t

ra
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 f
u

ll 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
, 

o
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
. 

M
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
O

u
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
a

c
h
e

rs
’ 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 

c
la

im
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
n
s
io

n
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

p
e

r 
th

e
 c

la
im

 w
e

re
 f

u
lly

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ila

b
le

 

to
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
re

c
o

rd
s
. 

T
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 p
a

y
ro

ll 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 

th
is

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
. 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 3

 -
 T

e
a

c
h

e
rs

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 -

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

ri
m

e
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
n

tr
ie

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
la

im
 a

re
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 w

it
h
 T

e
a

c
h

e
rs

’ 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

u
r 

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 u
s
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 

e
n

tr
ie

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
e

a
c
h

e
rs

’ 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 a
n
d

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

ju
s
t 

to
 p

ri
m

e
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
9

 

Page 50



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

s
 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

e
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
ts

 t
h

e
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o

f 
fe

e
s
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

 T
a

b
le

 6
: 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

c
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

s
 

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 f

e
e

 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 f

e
e

 
R

e
a

s
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 i
n

 f
e

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 +

/-
 1

0
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

s
c
h
e

m
e

 
£

2
2

,9
5

9
 

£
2

5
,4

3
9

 
N

/A
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

o
n

-d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
tu

rn
 

£
3

,8
7

6
 

£
2

,9
7

5
 

D
u

e
 t

o
 c

y
c
lic

a
l 
te

s
ti
n

g
 p

a
rt

 A
 &

B
 

te
s
ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 y
e

a
r.

 

T
e

a
c
h

e
rs

’ 
p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 r

e
tu

rn
 

£
2

,0
4

6
 

£
2

,0
0

2
 

N
/A

 

S
u

re
 s

ta
rt

, 
e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
c
a

re
 g

ra
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
im

in
g

 h
ig

h
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 g

ra
n

t 

£
1

,1
9

0
 

£
8

5
0

 
D

u
e

 t
o

 c
y
c
lic

a
l 
te

s
ti
n

g
 p

a
rt

 A
 &

B
 

te
s
ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 y
e

a
r.

 

D
is

a
b

le
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

£
5

9
5

 
£

4
2

5
 

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 e
q

u
a

te
s
 t

o
 2

h
rs

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 

o
n

ly
. 

T
o

ta
l

£
3

0
,6

6
6

£
3

1
,8

1
6

 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 –

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 
1

0
 

Page 51



©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

2
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
g

ra
n

t-
p

a
y
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
, 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u
d

it
o

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 

is
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

 

                  

 
 

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v

.u
k

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 

  

Page 52



  

 
 

Title: Good Governance Review Autumn 2011 

 

Public Agenda Item: Yes 
 
Wards 
Affected: 

All wards in Torbay 

  

To: Audit Committee On: 28 March 2012 
    
Key Decision: No 

 
  

   

Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: June Gurry 
℡ Telephone: (01803) 207012 
�  E.mail: June.gurry@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 

1. What we are trying to achieve and the impact on our customers 
 
1.1 To inform members and the public of the actions resulting from a review of the 

Council’s Governance arrangements.  The resulting action plan will contribute to 
ensuring the Council’s governance arrangements are robust, is part of 
assurance and the production of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 

2.1 That the Good Governance Review Autumn 2011 Action Plan be adopted 
and its progress monitored by Group Leaders via the Leadership Group. 

 

3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 To make the Good Governance Review Action Plan available to the public and 

to ensure the good governance of the Council. 
 
3.2 Following the election in May 2011, the Council undertook a review to assess 

the strength of the Council’s new governance arrangements. 
 
3.3 An action plan has been prepared in response to the results of the review. 
 

For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the supporting 
information attached. 
 
Caroline Taylor 
Director of Adults Services and Resources 

Agenda Item 8

Page 53



  

Supporting information 
 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 Good governance arrangements are essential and a council can not have 

effective service delivery without it.  The Audit Commission defines good 
governance as ensuring that the organisation is going the right things, in the 
right way, for the right people, in a timely, open, honest, inclusive and timely 
manner.  It is both the means and the ends;  the brains and the central nervous 
system of an organisation. 

 
A1.2 The Council reviewed its governance workings following the first 5 months of the 

new administration following the election in May 2011. 
 
A1.3 A survey was undertaken of all members and senior officers to gather feedback 

on the following areas: 
 

 Roles and functions; 
 Good governance through constructive relationships; 
 Taking informed and transparent decisions;  and 
 Serving Torbay 

 
A1.4 The results were presented at a governance workshop held in October 2011 

attended by members and senior officers.  The workshop used the results of the 
survey to identify what needed to be changed or improved.  The resulting action 
plan is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
A1.5 It is proposed the delivery of the action plan is monitored by the Group Leaders via 

the Leadership Group to ensure cross-party involvement in delivering the 
improvements identified. 

 

A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 The risk is lack of focus on improved governance and assurance.  This is 

mitigated by the Audit Committee’s overview of the plan.  The actions have been 
prepared on the basis that they can be delivered within existing resources and 
have cross-party agreement. 
 

A2.2 Remaining risks 
 
A2.2.1 There are no remaining risks. 

 
A3. Other Options 
 
A3.1 Not to adopt the action plan – this is not recommended as the action plan has 

identified measures to improve the Council’s governance arrangements. 

 

Page 54



  

A4. Summary of resource implications 
 
A4.1 The action plan will be delivered within existing resources namely officer time 

and the member development budget. 

 
A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 

crime and disorder? 
 
A5.1 The improvements arising from the action plan will support the Council’s 

governance arrangements which in turn will contribute towards strengthening 
improvements in each of these areas. 

 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 All members and senior officers played a key role in the review of the Council’s 

governance and the feedback has informed the resulting action plan.  The 
improvements to the Council’s governance will ultimately lead to better 
outcomes for the community. 

 

A7. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A7.1 Yes, a number of Business Units are involved in delivering the action plan within 

existing resources. 

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1  Good Governance Review Autumn 2011 Action Plan 
 

Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
Audit Commission Good Governance Standard Diagnostic 

Page 55



P
a
g

e
 1

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

 
 

 

G
o

o
d

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 A

u
tu

m
n

 2
0
1
1
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

(V
e
rs

io
n

 3
 –

 1
5
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
) 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
it
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
le
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
’s
 n
e
w
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 I
t 
fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
o
f 
e
le
c
te
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
. 

 T
h
is
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 t
a
k
e
s
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 A
w
a
y
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 1
9
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 

 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

1
. 
R
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
 

 

1
.1
 E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

c
h
a
ir
in
g
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
/m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 

C
h
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
h
e
n
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 

o
b
s
e
rv
e
. 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 

1
.2
 S
o
m
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
la
ri
ty
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 

p
o
w
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 o
f 

th
e
 M
a
y
o
r,
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
it
h
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 

G
o
o
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
c
k
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
, 
w
it
h
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 j
o
b
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r 

a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 G
u
rr
y
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

Page 56



P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

1
.3
 S
o
m
e
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

ro
le
s
 o
f 
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
in
g
. 

G
o
o
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
c
k
 t
o
 

b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

P
lu
s
 ‘
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
’ 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
S
e
n
io
r 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 T
e
a
m
. 

‘U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
’ 

tr
a
in
in
g
 –
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
 

 In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
c
k
 –
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

E
liz
a
b
e
th
 

R
a
ik
e
s
, 
A
n
th
o
n
y
 

B
u
tl
e
r 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 

G
u
rr
y
, 
p
lu
s
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
p
u
t 

      C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
.4
 S
o
m
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 c
la
ri
ty
 o
n
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

lig
h
t 
o
f 
e
m
e
rg
in
g
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 

o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
a
n
d
 N
H
S
 r
e
fo
rm
s
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
).
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

M
a
rk
 B
e
n
n
e
tt
, 

A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r,
 

J
u
n
e
 G
u
rr
y
 a
n
d
 

K
a
te
 S
p
e
n
c
e
r 

 

2
. 
G
o
o
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 

 
 

 

2
.1
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 r
u
le
s
 f
o
r 

m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit
y
 

to
 a
llo
w
 o
p
e
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
n
e
s
t 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
t 
p
ri
v
a
te
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 M
a
y
o
r 

a
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 t
h
a
t,
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
, 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 e
x
p
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

v
ie
w
s
 f
ra
n
k
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
a
n
 d
e
b
a
te
 f
re
e
ly
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
. 
 T
h
is
 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 c
le
a
rl
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 a
ll 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 G
ro
u
p
 
M
a
y
o
r 
a
n
d
 

G
ro
u
p
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
 

a
t 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
.2
 S
o
m
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
e
re
 

ra
is
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
 r
o
le
 i
n
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
in
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

e
m
e
rg
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 r
e
g
im
e
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 

g
ro
u
p
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
in
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 r
e
g
im
e
. 

P
e
n
d
in
g
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

th
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 n
e
w
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

re
g
im
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
, 

A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r 

a
n
d
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 o
f 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

O
n
 h
o
ld
 a
n
d
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 r
e
g
im
e
 

Page 57



P
a
g

e
 3

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

2
.3
A
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 s
o
m
e
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
’ 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 

   2
.3
B
 I
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

s
o
m
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 d
o
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
o
o
 

m
u
c
h
 d
e
ta
il.
 

2
.3
A
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
f 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 k
n
o
w
. 
 

T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
m
in
d
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 d
u
ti
e
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
 

T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r/
O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

w
id
e
ly
. 

 2
.3
B
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
‘M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r’
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

2
.3
A
 

‘U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
’ 

tr
a
in
in
g
 –
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
 

  2
.3
B
 ‘
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r’
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 –
 M
a
y
 

2
0
1
2
 

E
liz
a
b
e
th
 

R
a
ik
e
s
, 
A
n
th
o
n
y
 

B
u
tl
e
r 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 

G
u
rr
y
, 
p
lu
s
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
p
u
t 

 

2
.4
 I
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 c
le
a
r.
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
u
n
a
b
le
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 

th
e
n
 r
a
is
e
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
–
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 i
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
. 

‘U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

p
e
rs
p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
’ 

tr
a
in
in
g
 –
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
2
 

E
liz
a
b
e
th
 

R
a
ik
e
s
, 
A
n
th
o
n
y
 

B
u
tl
e
r 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 

G
u
rr
y
, 
p
lu
s
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
p
u
t 

 

2
.5
 S
o
m
e
 f
e
e
l 

m
e
m
b
e
r/
m
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

m
e
m
b
e
r/
s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
tr
o
n
g
e
r.
 

‘M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r’
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
in
fo
rc
e
 

M
e
m
b
e
r/
O
ff
ic
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
o
m
p
a
c
t 

F
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 –
 M
a
y
 

2
0
1
2
 

E
liz
a
b
e
th
 

R
a
ik
e
s
, 
A
n
th
o
n
y
 

B
u
tl
e
r 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 

G
u
rr
y
, 
p
lu
s
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
p
u
t 

 

Page 58



P
a
g

e
 4

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

3
. 
T
a
k
in
g
 I
n
fo
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

 
 

 

3
.1
 W
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

s
ty
le
 o
f 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 M
a
y
o
r,
 

it
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
b
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 

b
ri
e
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
o
lit
ic
a
l 

G
ro
u
p
s
. 

 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
a
tt
e
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

g
ro
u
p
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
n
y
 g
ro
u
p
 

a
s
k
 f
o
r 
a
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 b
e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 

to
 s
u
c
h
. 
 S
u
c
h
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 (
fo
llo
w
e
d
 

w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 b
y
 a
n
 e
 m
a
il 

c
o
n
fi
rm
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

w
h
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
e
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
) 
w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
. 
 M
e
m
b
e
r/
O
ff
ic
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

C
o
m
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
ro
to
c
o
l 
o
f 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th
is
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

T
e
re
s
a
 B
u
c
k
le
y
 

to
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
m
b
e
r/
o
ff
ic
e
r 

c
o
m
p
a
c
t 

 A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r 

to
 u
p
d
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

 

3
.2
 N
o
te
s
 o
f 
P
D
G
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

o
p
e
n
 i
n
v
it
e
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 

P
D
G
. 

S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

o
r 
s
o
m
e
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
P
D
G
s
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
is
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit
y
 a
t 

P
D
G
s
 f
ir
s
t,
 t
h
e
n
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
e
a
m
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
.3
 I
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
re
 

is
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
D
G
 a
n
d
 O
 &
 S
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
’ 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
. 
  

C
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 p
la
n
 a
s
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
la
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 P
D
G
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

M
a
rk
 B
e
n
n
e
tt
, 

B
e
rn
a
rd
 P
a
g
e
, 

P
a
u
l 
L
o
o
b
y
 a
n
d
 

K
a
te
 S
p
e
n
c
e
r 

 

Page 59



P
a
g

e
 5

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

3
.4
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r,
 

e
v
e
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
n
 u
rg
e
n
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
fu
ll 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
 a
n
d
 a
s
 

m
u
c
h
 t
im
e
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

is
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
a
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
p
o
rt
 f
o
rm
a
t 
w
it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 u
rg
e
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
ro
s
s
 p
a
rt
y
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 W
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

th
e
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt
. 

 P
ro
to
c
o
l 
to
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
h
e
re
d
 

to
 f
o
r 
la
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 –
 a
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
. 

 M
e
m
b
e
r/
O
ff
ic
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
o
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
is
. 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

T
e
re
s
a
 B
u
c
k
le
y
 

to
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

fo
rm
a
t/
S
e
n
io
r 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
a
m
 

 

3
.5
 T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 

d
is
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 t
o
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
P
D
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
u
b
lic
 o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 P
D
G
 

C
h
a
ir
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
P
D
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
u
b
lic
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 I
t 
w
a
s
 

a
ls
o
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r’
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
b
e
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

P
D
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 –
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

in
 6
 m
o
n
th
s
 (
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
) 

 It
e
m
 f
o
r 
P
D
G
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

    G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
e
a
m
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
.6
 S
o
m
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
la
ri
ty
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 

o
f 
P
D
G
s
. 

G
o
o
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 P
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
’ 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
o
n
 P
D
G
s
 

fo
r 
a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 

o
f 
P
D
G
s
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 

A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r 

a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 G
u
rr
y
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
.7
 S
o
m
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
to
o
 

m
a
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

m
a
d
e
 a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
a
s
 i
t 
is
 f
e
lt
 

m
in
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 b
y
 M
a
y
o
r 
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

N
o
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
s
 a
ll 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m
a
n
n
e
r,
 b
u
t 
th
is
 

to
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 

K
e
e
p
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 
 

 

Page 60



P
a
g

e
 6

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

3
.8
 G
re
a
te
r 
c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
. 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 a
t 
S
e
n
io
r 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 a
t 

‘M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r’
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
d
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 –
 

S
L
T
 

 M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 –
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

C
a
ro
lin
e
 T
a
y
lo
r 

  E
liz
a
b
e
th
 R
a
ik
e
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
.9
A
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 b
y
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
if
o
rm
. 

 3
.9
B
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 s
o
m
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 

ir
re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 

N
e
w
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
in
p
u
t.
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

to
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
p
re
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

d
is
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 b
e
fo
re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 –
 n
e
w
 

te
m
p
la
te
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 –
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
 n
e
w
 

te
m
p
la
te
 w
it
h
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

T
e
re
s
a
 B
u
c
k
le
y
 

fo
r 
re
p
o
rt
 

te
m
p
la
te
 

 

4
. 
S
e
rv
in
g
 T
o
rb
a
y
 

 
 

 

4
.1
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 

a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 

a
. 
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 

e
v
o
lv
in
g
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

 b
. 
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 t
o
 b
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

     c
. 
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 T
o
rc
o
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

a
. 
 1
8
 m
o
n
th
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

   b
. 
 B
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

     c
. 
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

P
a
t 
S
te
w
a
rd
/ 

T
ra
c
e
y
 B
ro
o
k
e
s
 

   C
la
ir
e
 B
a
rr
o
w
/ 

B
e
rn
a
rd
 

P
a
g
e
/J
e
n
n
y
 

R
a
y
n
e
r 

   T
ra
c
e
y
 C
a
b
a
c
h
e
/  

P
a
ts
y
 M
e
llo
r 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

    T
ri
a
l 
w
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 

u
s
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 a
s
 a
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
ia
l.
 

  C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 

Page 61



P
a
g

e
 7

 o
f 

7
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\8

\6
\6

\A
I0

0
0

0
4

6
6
8

\$
4

r1
c
3

z
e

q
.d

o
c
x
 

Is
s
u
e
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
/A
c
ti
o
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 

4
.2
 G
re
a
te
r 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

tw
o
 i
n
te
ra
c
t.
 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

s
u
m
m
a
ry
 s
h
e
e
t 
o
f 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 d
o
 a
n
d
 

d
o
n
't
 d
o
. 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll 
a
n
d
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 b
o
a
rd
s
. 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

   A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
o
ru
m
/ 

T
ra
c
e
y
 C
a
b
a
c
h
e
 

 

4
.3
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

L
e
a
d
 f
o
r 
In
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
  

 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

     S
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 

C
llr
 H
e
rn
a
n
d
e
z
 

  A
n
th
o
n
y
 B
u
tl
e
r 

a
n
d
 J
u
n
e
 G
u
rr
y
 

 

4
.4
 S
o
m
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
a
t 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
d
. 

E
x
p
lo
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 

m
e
d
ia
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
o
ru
m
 

 

4
.5
 S
o
m
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

g
re
a
te
r.
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 a
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
re
 g
re
a
te
r 

u
s
e
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
s
. 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

C
la
ir
e
 B
a
rr
o
w
/ 

J
u
n
e
 G
u
rr
y
/ 

J
e
n
n
y
 R
a
y
n
e
r 

C
o
m
p
le
te
, 
c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 u
s
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 

m
e
d
ia
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 

 

   R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
: 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 G
ro
u
p
 (
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
) 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 M
o
n
th
ly
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

  A
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y
: 
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 –
 2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
: 
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 G
ro
u
p
 

Page 62



 
 

  Public Agenda Item: Yes 
 

   
Title: Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
  
Wards 
Affected: 

All Wards 

  
To: Audit Committee On: 28 March 2012 
    
Key Decision: No   
   
Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   
Contact Officer: Martin Gould or Robert Hutchins 
℡ Telephone: 01803 207320 
�  E.mail: martin.gould@devonaudit.gov.uk, 

robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk 
 
 

1. What we are trying to achieve 
 

1.1 All local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to the Local 
Government Act 1972 Section 151 and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003 (as amended 2006 and 2011) must maintain an 
adequate and effective system of Internal Audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of Internal Control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control.  

 

1.2. Internal Audit provision is commissioned from Devon Audit Partnership. 
The Partnership is a shared service arrangement between Torbay, 
Plymouth and Devon County Councils and is constituted under Section 
20 of the Local Government Act 2000. The Partnership provides audit 
services to the three Councils under Trading Agreements agreed with 
each of the clients and reports to the respective Audit Committees in 
line with previous arrangements.  The commissioned service is 
expected to deliver improved efficiencies, productivity and performance, 
economies of scale and shared best practice.  

 
1.3. The Head of the Devon Audit Partnership fulfils the role of Chief 

Internal Auditor for all three founding client councils. The Audit Plan 
forms the basis for the annual report to those charged with governance.  

 

1.4.  Audit Plans are prepared for each of the client authorities using a risk 

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



based approach and priority assessment including consultation at both 
strategic and operational levels to ensure the service provided is 
aligned to customer needs, goals and objectives and satisfies the 
statutory assurance requirements. The Audit Days for each customer is 
based on available resources and previous service levels and the 
Partnership will operate robust performance management and reporting 
systems. 

 
 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 The Committee consider and agree in principle the proposed 

Audit Plan for 2012/2013. 
 
 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 To satisfy the requirements of the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 

Local Government in the United Kingdom and to enable full 
consideration of the Annual Governance Statement.  

 
3.2 To inform Members of the arrangements and work plan for the Internal 

Audit Service for the financial year 2012/2013 
 
3.3 To ensure key issues are communicated to and actioned by the 

Council to ensure risks are managed and the Internal Control 
Framework is sound. 

 
3.4 To ask Members to endorse the outline Audit Plan for 2012/13 and 

advise of any areas of concern they feel would benefit from Audit input. 
 
3.5 The Devon Audit partnership undertake audits in accordance with 

auditing standards contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom, which is the 
accepted standard to which the partnership works and against which 
performance is evaluated. Audits are planned and performed so as to 
obtain all the information and explanations considered necessary to 
gain assurance as to the level of control within the Authority. Audit 
findings and recommendations are however based on restricted 
samples of transactions / records and discussions with relevant 
officers. 

 
4. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
4.1. The report is predominantly for information and therefore there are no 

risks associated with the recommendations.  
 
4.2.  Although the plan has been matched to available resources within 

DAP, there remains a risk that a large fraud or irregularity, or significant 
levels of sickness or staff turnover could result in audit reviews slipping 

Page 64



thereby increasing the future risk to the Council.  Such situations will be 
managed within the overall audit resources available to the partnership 
with audit resources being moved between client Councils to better 
manage this risk and to address the issue identified. Conversely the 
impact of such an event on the other client Councils could necessitate 
resources being moved away from Torbay but it is hoped that allowing 
a contingency will help to manage this. 

 
4.3. It should be recognised that ultimately it is the responsibility of 

management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that 
activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner. 
It does not matter how good the systems of internal control are, it is not 
possible to guarantee that a fraud will not occur, although it is hoped 
any irregularity would be quickly identified and resolved. However the 
work undertaken by Internal Audit should give both the service 
manager, and the Council, assurance that with the testing undertaken, 
no fraud was found and that all systems were operating effectively 
within the limitations reported at the time.  Only by constant appliance 
of the Council’s Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and operating 
instructions can this risk be fully minimised. 

 
5. Other Options 
 
5.1. The issues raised in this report are predominantly for information and 

as such there is no requirement to consider alternative options. 
 
5.2. There is a statutory requirement for a continual internal audit of the 

Council’s processes and internal controls. Whilst there are options 
surrounding the risk assessments, those being used are the accepted 
approaches for this style of risk assessment and may vary from those 
which are applied to the Council ‘s services generally but in certain 
cases there are no alternative options if the Council is to meet external 
requirements.  

 
5.3. Internal Audit provides one element of the assurance required to 

enable the Mayor and Chief Executive to sign the Annual Governance 
Statement required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 
and updated by the 2006 Regulations. Directorate Management 
provide another source of assurance and should provide evidence to 
support their view that Internal Controls and wider corporate 
governance are adequate. External reviews provide another source of 
assurance. A reduction in Internal Audit coverage will therefore 
necessitate increased reliance on these other forms of assurance. 

 
6. Summary of resource implications 
 
6.1 The Audit & Efficiency net Budget for 2012/13 in respect of Torbay 

Council’s contribution to the Partnership has been set at £330,000, 
which is predominantly staff salaries. The audit plan is matched to 
available resources and delivered within the budget available.  

Page 65



 
7. Impact on equalities, environmental sustainability and crime and 

disorder 
 
7.1 Members and employees, in their roles and responsibilities, are asked 

to be vigilant in preventing and detecting fraud, corruption and 
irregularity. In addition, Members and employees have a responsibility 
to lead by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements, 
Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and all procedures and policies 
including both Members and Officers Codes of Conduct.  

 
7.2. Internal Audit has due regard for section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 

Act 1998, ensuring that we consider crime and disorder reduction and 
community safety in the exercise of all of our duties and activities. Part 
of our role includes being one of the major contacts within the Council’s 
Fraud & Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policies that detail how 
potential irregularities and frauds will be investigated and reported. 
Also, as part of the Audit Planning process, we discuss potential audit 
areas with all departments and undertake work on a cyclical basis in 
areas such as Community Safety Team, Youth Offending Team, 
Environmental protection/Street Wardens and Highways. 

 
8. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
8.1 The draft plan has been subject to consultation with Commissioning 

Officer Management Teams and External Auditors.  
 
8.2 Customers are a key area for the service. We have a range of internal 

and external customers who rely on our service to provide the 
assurance they require as part of their statutory function and to assist 
in maintaining the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of their 
service to their customers. This includes the Fraud & Corruption and 
Whistle-blowing policies that provide a framework for the investigation 
and management of Whistle-blowing referrals which will safeguard 
employees who make a protected disclosure and demonstrates clear 
standards and guidelines for maintaining probity, accountability and 
trust within Torbay Council. 

 
9. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
9.1 Internal Audit covers all services of the Council and will therefore have 

linkages and implications for all business units and for Torbay schools.  
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Detailed Report Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
 
 
 
Martin Gould 
Head of the Devon Audit Partnership 

Page 66



 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE – ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 All principal Local Authorities, including Torbay Council, are subject to the Accounts 

and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended), and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2006 and 2011, which require that the Authority should make provision for Internal 
Audit in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government (the Code). 

 
1.2 The Code requires, inter alia, that Internal Audit should prepare an annual risk-based 

plan for approval by the Audit Committee.   In addition the Code requires that the 
Chief Internal Auditor should provide, annually, an opinion on the overall adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 

 
1.3 This audit plan has been drawn up, therefore, to enable an opinion to be provided at 

the end of the year in accordance with the above requirements. 
 
 
2. AUDIT NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 
2.1 The audit plan for 2012/13 plan has been identified by: 
 

• Adopting a risk based priority audit planning tool to identify those areas where audit 
resources can be most usefully targeted.  This involves scoring a range of systems, 
services and functions across the whole Authority, known as the “Audit Universe” 
using a number of factors/criteria. The final score, or risk factor for each area, 
together with a priority ranking, then determines an initial schedule of priorities for 
audit attention; 

• Discussions and liaison with Directors and Senior Officers regarding the risks which 
threaten the achievement of corporate or service objectives, including the 
introduction of new systems and corporate initiatives; 

• Taking into account results of previous internal audit reviews; 

• Taking into account Internal Audit’s knowledge and experience of the risks facing the 
Authority, including factors and systems that are key to successful achievement of 
the Council’s delivery plans; 

• Requirements to meet the “managed audit” approach with the external auditors; 

• Consideration of risks identified in the Authority’s strategic and operational risk 
registers. 

 
 The resultant Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 is set out in Appendices 1 and 2. 
 
3. INTERNAL AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 
3.1 Since 1st April 2009 the Internal Audit Service for Torbay Council has been delivered 

by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP).  This is a shared service arrangement 
between Plymouth City, Devon County and Torbay Councils and is constituted under 
section 20 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

Page 67



 

 
 

3.2 Although delivery of each authority’s audit requirements is resourced by DAP, each 
authority’s audit plan for 2012/13 has been prepared individually as hitherto, 
although some cross partner reviews have also been included.   

 
4. INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES 
 
4.1 Based upon our detailed risk assessment process we consider that 1,428 days of 

internal audit input will be required for Torbay Council in 2012/13.  
 
4.2 In order to provide a cost-effective service and good value for money to all of our 

clients it is important that emphasis is given to minimising costs, particularly 
overheads, and maximising the efficiency and effectiveness of the audit processes. 
There is regular monitoring and management review of performance within the team 
over the year and we participate in the annual CIPFA benchmarking comparisons 
with other Internal Audit functions to demonstrate that Devon Audit Partnership 
provides a cost-effective service.  

 
5. PLANNED AUDIT COVERAGE 2012/13 
 
5.1 Appendix 1 shows a summary of planned audit coverage for 20121/13 totalling 1,428 

direct days.  A more detailed analysis of proposed audit reviews is provided in 
Appendix 2.   It should be borne in mind that, in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit, the plan needs to be flexible to be able to reflect and 
respond to the changing risks and priorities of the Authority and, to this end, it will be 
regularly reviewed with directorates, and updated as necessary, to ensure it remains 
valid and appropriate. As a minimum, the plan will be reviewed in 6 months to ensure 
it continues to reflect the key risks and priorities of the Council given the significant 
changes across the public sector. In order to allow greater flexibility, the IA Plan 
includes a contingency to allow for unplanned work.   

 
5.2 We have set out our plan based on the current organisational structure for the 

Authority. However, as this structure continues to bed down, it is possible that there 
will be changes to where actual areas of work report and we may need to revise our 
thinking accordingly. Detailed terms of reference will be drawn up and agreed with 
management prior to the start of each assignment – in this way we can ensure that 
the key risks to the operation or function are considered during our review. The 
following paragraphs give a brief overview of the focus of proposed audit coverage 
for the year:- 

 
Adults & Operations 

 
5.3 Our work for Adults & Operations includes work on what are termed “key financial 

systems” – these are systems that process the majority of income and expenditure 
for the Council, and which have a significant impact on the reliability and accuracy of 
the annual accounts. Our work in the area will include reviews of :- 

• Payroll 

• Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates 

• Benefits 

• Finance System 

• Ordering & Payments 

Page 68



 

 
 

• Income Collection 

• Treasury Management. 
 
5.4 Reviews in previous years have confirmed that, generally, sound arrangements are 

in place for these systems, but we will seek to ensure that previous weaknesses that 
have been identified have been rectified. 

 
5.5 We have agreed with management the key risks that currently affect ICT for the 

Council. We will undertake reviews of Information Governance arrangements, Data 
Security, Business Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery. All of these areas 
help to ensure that data and business operations are suitably safeguarded against 
the risks identified. 

 
Place & Environment 

 
5.6 We shall continue to work with management of the Economic Development 

Company, and help to ensure that sound, effective and reliable systems are in place 
to manage the risks faced by this (relatively) new organization. 

 
5.7 We have set aside some time to review the development of the South Devon Link 

road. This multi-million pound project will bring considerable benefits to the region; 
we will help to ensure that the project is suitably governed and that the risks 
identified are effectively addressed. 

 
5.8 We have agreed a 3 year plan of visits with the Tor Bay Harbour Authority; our work 

will be a mixture of finance system reviews (payments etc), and visits to local offices 
to ensure consistency of operations. 

 
 

Communities & Local Democracy 
 
5.9 Our work in Communities and Local Democracy will include a review of the Safer 

Communities team. We will be reviewing how objectives and priorities, as set out in 
the strategic plan, are being delivered and how threats to these objectives are being 
managed.   

 
5.10 Disabled facilities and renovations grants have reduced in recent years but still 

represent a significant amount of expenditure. Our review will ensure that 
appropriate checks and balances are maintained to ensure that applications are 
promptly and effectively processed and that grant conditions are effectively enforced. 

 
 

Children & Families 
 
5.11 We have allowed some time in our plan to assist in the preparation of Public Health 

duties, which will fully fall onto the Council in 2013/14. We shall also review the 
arrangements in place for the Health and Well Being board, providing assurance that 
sound and effective governance arrangements are in place. 

 

Page 69



 

 
 

5.12 We shall review two key information systems SIMS (School Information Management 
System) and PARIS (Children’s Information System). The operation of both systems 
will face challenges in the year ahead, and we shall help to ensure that data integrity 
and reliability is maintained and that users can rely upon the information being 
provided. 

 
Carry forward (completion of previous year work)  

 
5.13 At the end of the year there will always be part of our work that is “work in progress” 

– this may require testing to be completed, the working papers to be reviewed by 
audit management, or the draft / final report to be agreed with management. Time 
has been allocated to ensure that all planned audits carried over from 2011/12 can 
be completed to the expected standard. 

 
Fraud prevention, detection & Investigation 

 
5.14 Counter-fraud arrangements are a high priority for the Council and assist in the 

protection of public funds and accountability.  Internal Audit will continue to 
investigate instances of potential fraud and irregularities referred to it by managers, 
and will also carry out pro-active anti-fraud and corruption testing of systems 
considered to be most at risk to fraud. In recognition of the guidance expected in the 
new Fraud Strategy for Local Government and the recent Audit Commission 
publication “Protecting the Public Purse” greater audit resource will be allocated to 
this area to allow more focus on identifying and preventing fraud before it happens. 

 
5.15 The Audit Commission runs a national data matching exercise (National Fraud 

Initiative) every two years.  The next exercise is due to be undertaken in  the coming 
year and Internal Audit will work with relevant departments to ensure that the 
required data sets are extracted from the appropriate Council systems as required by 
the Audit Commission, in accordance with their data specifications.  These are due 
to be uploaded to the NFI web application in October 2012. 

 
 

Grant Claims 
 

5.16 We will review interim and final grant claims before submission to the grant awarding 
 body. Our work will ensure that claims are accurate, complete and that income 
 opportunities to the council are maximised.  
 
 

Other Chargeable Activities 
 

5.17 An element of our work is classified as “other chargeable activities” – this is work that 
ensures effective and efficient services are provided to the Council and the internal 
audit function continues to meet statutory responsibilities. In some instances this 
work will result in a direct output (i.e. an audit report) but in other circumstances  the 
output may simply be advice or guidance. Some of the areas that this may cover 
include :- 
 
• Preparing and monitoring the internal audit plan 

Page 70



 

 
 

• Preparing and presenting monitoring reports to senior management and  
  committee 

• Liaison with other inspection bodies (e.g. Audit Commission) 
• Annual governance statement 
• Corporate Governance - Over recent years Internal Audit has become  

  increasingly involved in several corporate governance and strategic issues, 
  and this involvement is anticipated to continue during 2012/13 

• Technical and process developments within the Partnership. Investment in 
  these developments is expected to deliver greater efficiencies in the future. 

 
Advice / Consultancy 

 
5.18 Internal Audit will continue to be consulted by all departments throughout the 

Authority on many and varied topics including, for example, interpretation of 
Financial Regulations/Standing Orders, corporate governance, internal controls, 
legislation (e.g. Data Protection), security, letting of contracts, PC/network access 
etc.  The pro-active involvement of Internal Audit in risk and control issues, relating to 
new systems and changes, assists in protecting the Authority from loss, fraud and 
abuse.   

 
5.19 In addition Internal Audit will continue to support major projects throughout the 

Council providing advice and input into key developments and initiatives such as the 
revised payroll system and several procurement exercises. 
 
Schools Audits 
 

5.20 The Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) has now been abolished 
and replaced by the Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS).  The revised 
standard was developed by Department for Education (DfE) to replace the FMSiS to 
help governors, in particular, in self-evaluating the quality of their financial 
management and to aid in improving schools financial management. The Standard is 
intended to cover standards and processes that should already be in place in 
schools, and reduce the bureaucracy of the former FMSiS.  

 
5.21 The DfE announced the SFVS at the very end of the Summer Term with an 

implementation date of 1st September 2011 and have set 2 key deadlines for 
achievement. All schools that were not accredited to FMSiS   will need to submit their 
SFVS Self-assessment to their LA by the 31st March 2012 and those schools that 
were accredited will need to submit their SFVS Self-assessment before the 31st 
March 2013.The purpose of the SFVS is to make the best use of resources in the 
education system, to achieve the best possible outcomes for children. DfE have 
made this a mandatory requirement for all schools and are changing the scheme of 
delegation to fit this requirement.  

 
5.22 Audit of the control and governance arrangements within schools will continue to be 

carried out on a three year cyclical basis and all the key elements that were in FMSiS 
and now in SFVS, and which were formerly audited by us, will continue to be 
covered.  We were part of the DfE consultation and pilot study on the SFVS and we 
have incorporated the SFVS into the school audit programme. Our Audit Programme 
has been tailored to fit with the SFVS standard from the 1st September 2011 in order 

Page 71



 

 
 

to support schools and maintain efficiency. We have also developed support through 
our webpages with: 

• model answers; 

• key timelines guidance;  

• training programme to be delivered through Autumn and Spring. 
 
5.23 The Government’s drive to encourage schools to become academies is firmly in 

place.  Because there is no requirement for academy schools to have internal audit 
this represents, potentially, lost business to DAP.  We have had some success in the 
process of advertising and bidding for “responsible officer” work with the academies 
and have agreements in place with some former Torbay Schools.  The majority of 
non-academy schools (still within LA control) currently buy back Internal Audit 
services from DAP. 
 
 

6. PARTNERSHIP WORKING WITH OTHER AUDITORS 

 
6.1 We will continue to work towards the development of effective partnership working 

arrangements between ourselves and other audit agencies where appropriate and 
beneficial. We will participate in a range of internal audit networks, both locally and 
nationally, which provide for a beneficial exchange of information and practices. This 
often improves the effectiveness and efficiency of the audit process, through 
avoidance of instances of “re-inventing the wheel” in new areas of work which have 
been covered in other authorities. 

6.2 The most significant partnership working arrangement that we currently have with 
other auditors continues to be that with the Council’s external auditors. The current 
providers are the Audit Commission and our working with them is well established 
over many years and is formalised in the annual Joint Audit Protocol. With a change 
to new external audit providers (Grant Thornton) we shall seek to set up liaison 
arrangements as soon as practically possible, to ensure smooth transition.  
 

6.3 As well as carrying out work which the external auditors rely on in respect of the 
Fundamental Systems described earlier, Devon Audit Partnership carries out further 
work on their behalf in the audits of grant claims. We are committed to continuing to 
improve the effectiveness of these arrangements, which aim to avoid duplication and 
minimise the overall cost of audit to the Council.  

 
 

7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 It is recommended that:- 
 
(i) The report be noted 
(ii) The proposed Internal Audit plan for 2012/13 at Appendices 1 and 2 be approved 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 72



 

 
 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
Summary of Planned Audit Coverage for 2012/13 
 
 
Torbay Council   

   Planned 

Draft Internal Audit Plan 2012 /2013 Days 

     

Risk based and priority audits   

  Adults & Operations 460 

  Place & Environment 170 

  Communities & Local Democracy 65 

  Children & Families 122 

     

Carry forward (completion of previous year work) 50 

Fraud prevention, detection & investigation 135 

Contract audit 30 

Corporate initiatives 65 

Grant claims 15 

Contingency 75 
Other chargeable activities (audit planning, attendance at audit committee 
etc) 150 

Advice / consultancy 60 

File maintenance 6 

Follow ups 25 

      

Total Audit for Torbay Council 1428 

      

School visits (purchased directly by schools) 80 

      

Total Audit Plan for Torbay Council including Schools 1508 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 
 

Detailed analysis of proposed audit reviews 2012/12 
 
Directorate     

Adults & Operations    

Risk Factor Audit Area Entity 2012/13 Future 
Year 

8.3 Material Systems  Business services -Payroll Northgate self service project 10  

8.1 IT Audit Information Services- Information Governance, Data Protection, Records management 
and Security 

15  

7.6 IT Audit Information Services - IT Asset Management 15  

 Material Systems  Business Services - Payroll 30  

 Strategic Risk Information Services - TCT New SCCR database implementation 10  

7.5 IT Audit Information Services - Data Security, BCP, Disaster Recovery 10  

7.3 Operational Risk Information Services - Data quality audit 15  

7.2 IT Audit Information Services - Civica inc' Comino & CRM 20  

 Strategic Risk Business Services - Business Change (including transformation agenda, PIP & PPPP) 20  

7.1 IT Audit Information Services - Thin Client Planning & Roll Out  15 

 Material Systems  ITRA (IT Risk Assessment for AC) 5  

7.0 IT Audit Information Services - End User Computing 10  

 Operational Risk Information Services - Information Security Policy Review & Implementation 15  

  Business services - Human Resources  & Organisational Development  20 

  Commercial Services - Procurement  15 

7.0 Corporate 
Governance 

Business Services - Performance incl Payment by Results  15 

 IT Audit Information Services - PCI Compliance Project 5  

  Information Services - Exchange  10 

 Material Systems  Finance - IBS Open sys admin 18  

  Finance - FIMS sys admin 18  

 Strategic Risk Business Services - Risk Management & Risk Register 10  

6.9 Operational Risk Commercial Services - Legal Services (litigation and licensing) 10  

  Finance - CTAX support Scheme 10  

  Finance - Corporate Debt Team  15 

 Strategic Risk Business Services - Partnerships  20 

6.8 IT Audit Information Services - ICT resiliance  20 

  Information Services - E Commerce  10 

 Material Systems  Finance  - Benefits 36  

  Finance - POP 18  

 Operational Risk Commercial Services - Information compliance  15 

6.7 IT Audit Information Services - WebSense & SurfControl  10 

  Information Services - IT IS Strategy  20 

  Information Services  - Active Directory  15 

 Material Systems  Finance - Asset Register 10  

 Operational Risk Finance - Business Improvement Districts (Bid) 10  

  Information Services - Councils Web (Management and security)  10 

6.6 Material Systems  Finance - Creditors 23  

  Finance - Income Collection 18  

6.5 IT Audit Information Services - Organisational Controls  15 

 Material Systems  Finance - CTAX & NDR 28  

 Strategic Risk Finance - Capital Programme  15 

6.4 Establishment Information Services - Print & Post Room  20 

 Material Systems  Finance - Bank Rec 10  

 Operational Risk Business Services - Overview & Scrutiny  10 

6.3 IT Audit Information Services - Oracle  20 

6.3 IT Audit Information Services - Change Control  10 

 Material Systems  Finance - Debtors 23  

  Finance - General Ledger 23  

 Operational Risk Business Services - Pensions  15 

6.2 Corporate 
Governance 

Information Services - Communications  10 

 IT Audit Information Services - Email Archiving Project  10 

 Operational Risk Information Services - Customer Services  15 

6.1 Material Systems  Finance - Treasury Management 15  

6.0 Establishment Commercial Servicers  - Coroner  10 

 IT Audit Information Services  - Voice Network  10 

 Operational Risk Commercial Services - Land Charges  10 

5.9 Operational Risk Finance  - Riviera International Centre  5 

5.7 Establishment Commercial Services - Registration of Births, Marriages & Deaths  10 

5.0 Strategic Risk Commercial Services - Claims Handling & Insurance  10 

   460 405 

Page 74



 

 
 

 
 
Directorate     

Place & Environment    

Risk Factor Audit Area Entity 2012/13 Future 
Year 

7.6 Operational Risk Economic Development Company 25  

7.5 Strategic Risk South Devon Link Road 10  

7.2 Operational Risk TOR2 Contract monitoring 10  

  English Riviera Tourism Company. 20  

7.0 Operational Risk Spatial Planning - Transport (Strategic and Operational) 15  

7.0 Operational Risk Coast & Countryside Trust  10 

6.9 Operational Risk Environment project involvement 40  

6.8 Material Systems  Residents & Visitor Services - Highways (Transport infrastructure - UK PMS system) 10  

 Operational Risk Residents & Visitor Services - Parking Services 15  

  Spatial Planning - Section 106 10  

6.7 Establishment Tor Bay Harbour Authority 15  

6.5 Establishment Residents & Visitor Services - Library Services  10 

6.4 Operational Risk Spatial Planning - Concessionary Fares  10 

  Residents & Visitor Services - Sport  15 

 Strategic Risk Spatial Planning - Carbon Management  15 

6.3 Establishment Residents & Visitor Services - Theatres & Public Entertainment  10 

6.3 Operational Risk Residents & Visitor Services - Public Toilets  10 

  Spatial Planning - Environmental Policy  15 

6.2 Establishment Residents & Visitors Services - Beach Services  15 

 Operational Risk Spatial Planning - Development & Conservation Planning  15 

6.1 Operational Risk Residents & Visitor Services - Natural Environment  15 

6.0 Operational Risk Residents & Visitor Services - Corporate Security & CCTV  15 

  Spatial Planning - Building Control  10 

  Residents & Visitor Services - Transport Co-ordination  10 

5.9 Establishment Residents & Visitor Services - Museum Services  15 

5.6 Operational Risk Residents & Visitor Services - Arts & Development Support  15 

   170 205 

 
 
 
 
 
Directorate     

Communities and Local 
Democracy 

   

Risk Factor Audit Area Entity 2012/13 Future 
Year 

7.1 Strategic Risk Commissioning  10 

7.0 Operational Risk Community safety - Safer Communities 10  

6.9 Operational Risk Community Safety - Housing standards inc' disabled facilities and renovation 
grants 

20  

6.7 Operational Risk Community Safety - Food Safety, H&S, Licensing & Trading Standards 15  

  Community Safety - Community Development   10 

6.6 Corporate Governance Community Engagement - Elections 10  

 Operational Risk Community Safety - Community & Environmental Protection  15 

6.5 Corporate Governance Community Engagement - Democratic representation and management 10  

6.3 Strategic Risk Community Safety - Emergency planning and business continuity  10 

6.3 Operational Risk Community Safety -H&S  10 

  Community Engagement - Members support services and allowances  5 

5.8 Operational Risk Community Safety - Bereavement Services   5 

   65 65 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Directorate     

Children, Schools & 
Families 

   

Risk Factor Audit Area Entity 2012/13 Future 
Year 

7.6 Strategic Risk Public health  -transfer of service 10  

7.5 Operational Risk Implementation of Recommendations from external reports 15  

7.3 Strategic Risk Health and Well Being Board 10  

7.1 IT Audit Schools IT  20 

 Operational Risk Specialist Services - Accommodation Services 10  

7.0 Material Systems  Supporting People 10  

 Operational Risk Specialist Services - Safeguarding Service  10 

  Discretionary Social Fund 5  

7.0 Operational Risk Specialist Services - Special Education Needs Services  10 

6.8 Operational Risk Early Intervention - Early Year Services  15 

  Permanency Planning - Care to Community  10 

  School Organisation & Policy  15 

  Specialist Services – Children’s Disability Team 10  

  Early intervention  - family support service  10 

6.7 Material Systems  SIMS  (Schools Information Management System) 10  

 Operational Risk Learning & Standards - School Standards  15 

  Specialist Services - Children In Need Services  15 

  Use of agency staff  10 

 Strategic Risk Voluntary sector development 10  

6.6 Operational Risk Specialist Services - Permanency Planning Team  15 

  Learning & Standards - Learning Access Services EOTAS  10 

  School Transport  10 

6.5 Operational Risk Education management system  15 

6.4 Operational Risk Resources Services  10 

  Specialist Services - Senior Mgmt & Overhead Costs for Specialist Services & Grants  10 

6.3 Material Systems  PARIS (Children’s Information System) 10  

 Operational Risk Early Intervention - Connexions  5 

6.3 Operational Risk Early Intervention - Torbay Youth Service 10  

  SFDS Coordination 12  

6.2 Establishment Permanency Planning - Hillside Family Centre  10 

6.0 Operational Risk Early Intervention - Youth Offending Team  10 

5.9 Operational Risk Housing  10 

   122 235 

     

 

Page 76



 
 

Report No:  Public Agenda Item: Yes 
 

   
Title: Future of Public Audit 
  
Wards 
Affected: 

All Wards 

  
To: Audit Committee On: 28 March 2012 
    
Key Decision: No   
   
Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   
Contact Officer: Martin Gould or Robert Hutchins 
℡ Telephone: 01803 207320 
�  E.mail: martin.gould@devonaudit.gov.uk, 

robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk 
 

 
1 INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1  On 13 August 2010, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government announced plans to disband the Audit Commission and refocus audit on 
helping local people hold their councils and other local public bodies to account for 
local spending decisions. 
 
1.2. Following this announcement the Secretary of State proposed that in future 
local authorities would be able to appoint their own external auditors and in March 
2011 launched a consultation document on the Future of Public Audit. However it 
was recognised that such a framework could not  be introduced immediately so the 
Audit Commission were asked to run a procurement exercise to appoint new external 
auditors with effect from 2012/13. Following an EU Procurement Exercise a number 
of private sector providers and the previous in-house Audit Practice were invited to 
tender for 10 contracts spread over 4 geographical regions.  
 
2    RECOMMENDATION:  
 
2.1. Members Note the proposed appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as 

External Auditors of Torbay Council from 2012/13 
 
2.2. Note the DCLG proposals for the Future of Public Audit 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 77



3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1   Since 1983, the Audit Commission has acted in roles of regulator, 
commissioner and provider of local public audit services. The current system is 
governed by the provisions of the Audit Commission Act 1998. 
 
3.2 Following the announcement of its decision to abolish the Audit Commission 
in August 2010, the Government consulted on its proposals for a new local public 
audit framework from 31 March to 30 June 2011. Those proposals were designed to 
deliver the Government’s objective for a new local public audit framework that places 
responsibility firmly in the hands of local bodies, giving them the freedom to appoint 
their own auditors, with appropriate safeguards for auditor independence, from an 
open and competitive market for local public audit services. They were also designed 
with the fundamental principle of accountability in mind – providing a system of local 
public audit that allows local bodies to be held to account for the public money at 
their disposal, locally to residents and service users, and also as part of a framework 
of accountability that provides assurance to Parliament about the public money it 
votes to Government departments and which is in turn devolved to the local level.  
 
3.3. The proposals in the consultation paper covered all local public bodies except 
health bodies and probation trusts.  
 
3.4.. Following the end of the Consultation process in June, the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) have been considering the feedback 
received and have now published their response.  A total of 453 responses to the 
consultation were received, the majority from local government. The Government 
response sets out the key themes and views which were raised during the 
consultation and what the Government now proposes for the new arrangements for 
audit of principal public bodies. This report outlines the key features of the DCLG 
response and the implications for local authorities, 
 
3.5.  The Audit Commission has recently announced the results of the process of 
outsourcing all the audit work of its in-house practice. The outsource contracts that 
the Commission will put in place will start from 2012-13 and will run for five years 
giving local councils and other public bodies the time to plan for appointing their own 
auditors. As a result of the outsourcing, a single provider will be responsible for 
undertaking the external audit of all public bodies in the south west. Once the audits 
have been outsourced the Commission will be radically reduced in size to become a 
small residuary body responsible for overseeing the contracts and making any 
necessary changes to the individual audit appointments during the life of the 
contracts. 
 
4.  APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR FOR 2012/13 – 2016/17 
 
4.1. As a result of the outsourcing referred to above Grant Thornton LLP have 
been chosen as the provider of External Audit services to public bodies within the 
South West region. This includes Torbay Council. 
 
4.2. Following the end of the procurement process, there will be a consultation 
period with audited bodies on the appointment of their new auditors. The 
appointments will be formally approved by the Commission's Board in July. 
Appointments for 2012/13 will commence on 1 September, with Audit Commission 
staff transferring to the new suppliers on 31 October 2012. It is expected that 
changes to the appointments will only be necessary where there are conflict of 
interest issues with the proposed appointment such as a firm having a prior or current 

Page 78



business relationship with an audited body – such as providing consultancy services 
directly relevant to auditors’ responsibilities (for example in relation to a PFI scheme 
or the provision of internal audit services) – which would preclude the Commission 
appointing the firm, or the firm accepting appointment, as the auditor to that body   
 
4.3. Where an audited body objects to the proposed appointment, it should set out 
in writing good reasons why the proposed appointment should not be made. The 
following grounds may amount to good reasons. 
 

• There is an independence issue, of which the Commission and/or the firm 
was previously unaware, which would preclude the Commission appointing 
the firm – or the firm accepting appointment – as the auditor to a particular 
body. 

• The audited body is involved in formal and on-going joint working 
arrangements (for example, joint management team or shared back office 
functions or joint provision of major services with neighbouring bodies), which 
means it would be more appropriate for those bodies to have the same 
auditor. 

• There is another specific good reason – for example, a body can demonstrate 
a history of inadequate services from a particular firm. 

 
3.4. The 2012/13 audit fees will be approved by the Commission Board and 
announced in April 2012. The procurement has been the result of a rigorous 
assessment of each bidder against published cost and quality criteria, and according 
to the Audit Commission will mean significant audit fee savings of up to 40% for local 
councils, NHS trusts and other local bodies. Public bodies are expected to save over 
£30 million a year for the length of the contracts. Together with additional savings of 
£19 million a year achieved through the Commission's own internal efficiencies, the 
result will be an expected £250 million (or 40 per cent) fall in audit fees for most local 
public bodies over five years. The Audit Commission have stated that the outcome of 
the procurement will promote a skilled, well-resourced and diverse public audit 
market.  
 
3.5. As part of the transition arrangements and to support the consultation 
process, the Audit Commission are arranging a series of introductory meetings in 
each contract area between 30 April and 16 May. The purpose of these meetings is 
to give audited bodies in each area an opportunity to meet the new firm proposed as 
their auditor and its senior partners, and hear how the firm plans to manage its new 
portfolio and its approach to the audits. The date for the South West region (which 
includes Avon, Cornwall, Devon, Dorset, Gloucestershire, Somerset and Wiltshire) is 
expected to be 11th May 2012. 
 
5 KEY ELEMENTS OF THE NEW LOCAL PUBLIC AUDIT FRAMEWORK 

APRIL 2017 ONWARDS 
 
5.1. Following the completion of the outsourced contracts up to 2016/17 financial 
year, assuming appropriate legislation is in place, the proposed new framework will 
allow public bodies to appoint their own Auditors. Such appointments would need to 
be made in December 2016 for the 2017/18 financial year. The design principles of 
the new framework for local public audit are that it should be localist and transparent, 
achieve a reduction in the overall cost of audit, and uphold high standards of 
auditing, ensuring that there is effective and transparent regulation of public audit, 
and conformity to the principles of public audit. The key elements within the DCLG 
response are referred to below:  

Page 79



 
 REGULATION  
 
5.2. The National Audit Office will produce the Code of Practice and supporting 
guidance for audit of local public bodies, subject to Parliamentary approval. The 
National Audit Office will be required to consult key partners in developing the Code  
 
5.3. The Financial Reporting Council will be the overall regulator, mirroring its 
role under the Companies Act 2006. The Financial Reporting Council will be 
responsible for recognition and supervision of Recognised Supervisory Bodies 
(professional accountancy bodies responsible for supervising the work of auditors, 
and for putting rules and arrangements in place which their members must fulfil 
before they can be registered auditors) and for Recognised Qualifying Bodies 
(professional accountancy bodies responsible for awarding audit qualifications). 
 
5.4.  Mirroring the Companies Act 2006, Recognised Supervisory Bodies will have 
the roles of registration, monitoring and discipline for local public audit , put in place 
rules and practices covering eligibility of firms to undertake local public audit; and 
keep a register of firms eligible to undertake local public audit. As under the 
Companies Act 2006, Recognised Supervisory Bodies will monitor the quality of 
audits undertaken by their member firms, and investigate complaints, disciplinary 
cases and issues identified during the monitoring of firms on the register of local 
public auditors.  
 
COMMISSIONING LOCAL PUBLIC AUDIT SERVICES  
 
Auditor Appointment 
 
5.5. Local public bodies will have a duty to appoint an auditor from the register of 
local public auditors, on the advice of an Independent Auditor Appointment Panel. 
The Independent Audit Appointment Panel will have an independent chair and a 
majority of independent members. Local public bodies will be able to share 
appointment panels (and therefore independent members) to ease admin burdens 
and reduce costs.  
 
5.6. The appointment process will be transparent. Local public bodies will be 
required to publish details of the auditor appointment on their website within 28 days 
of making the appointment, together with the Independent Audit Appointment Panel’s 
advice and, if they did not follow that advice, a statement explaining why.  
  
Role of Independent Auditor Appointment Panels  
  
5.7. Government intends to prescribe specific functions to the Independent Audit 
Appointment Panel limited to the external audit, including advising on auditor 
appointment, independence, removal and resignation, and in relation to public 
interest reports. The arrangements will allow local public bodies to share 
Independent Audit Appointment Panels, and to expand on the remit of their Panel if 
they wish, choosing a model which best suits their circumstances. The Government 
will work with the public sector to produce guidance as to how the responsibilities of 
the Independent Auditor Appointment Panels might interface with those of the 
traditional Audit Committee. 
 
Failure to Appoint an Auditor  
  
5.8. Local public bodies will be required to appoint an auditor by 31 December in 

Page 80



the year preceding the financial year to be audited, and notify the Secretary of State 
if they have not done so. The Secretary of State will be able to direct the local public 
body to appoint an auditor or make the auditor appointment directly. In addition to 
meeting the cost of the appointment the local public body could be subject to a 
sanction for failing to make the appointment.  
  
Rotation of Audit firms and Audit staff  
 
5.9. Local public bodies will be required to run a procurement competition for its 
audit services at least every five years. Auditors will have to comply with the 
standards and rules set by the regulator. Applying the current standards means the 
audit engagement partner will be able to undertake audit for a local public body for an 
initial five years and be reappointed for a further two years. The audit manager will be 
able to be appointed for a maximum of ten years. After these periods, these key audit 
staff will not be able to work with the local public body for a further five years.  
 
Resignation or Removal of an Auditor  
  
5.10. There will be rigorous, transparent processes for auditor resignation or 
removal, designed to protect auditor independence, quality of audit, and 
accountability to the electorate. These broadly mirror those in the Companies Act, but 
are adapted to reflect the principles of public audit.  
  
Auditor liability  
  
5.11. Auditor liability should be an issue to be dealt with in the contractual 
negotiations between the auditor and audited body.  
  
Scope of Local Public Audit and Auditors’ work  
  
5.12. The scope of local public audit will remain broadly similar. As now, auditors of 
local public bodies will be required to satisfy themselves that the accounts have been 
prepared in accordance with the necessary directions; proper practices have been 
observed in the compilation of the accounts; and the body has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. The detail of how auditors should fulfil these requirements will, as now, be 
set out in a code of audit practice. The value for money component should be more 
risk based and proportionate, with auditors basing their assessment of risk on 
evidence of the local public body’s arrangements for securing value for money 
provided by the local public body, possibly in the Annual Governance Statement and 
other documents.  
 
5.13.  The duty for auditors of local public bodies to undertake Public Interest 
Reporting will be retained, as will their ability to charge audited bodies for reasonable 
work.. A new duty will be placed on audited bodies to publish the Public Interest 
Report. 
 
5.14. Auditors will be permitted to provide non-audit services to the audited body, 
subject to adhering to the Auditing Practices Board’s ethical standards and the 
Independent Auditor Appointment Panel’s approval.  
 
5.15.. The local public auditor and the Independent Auditor Appointment Panel will 
be defined as designated persons under the Public Interest Disclosure Act, to enable 
individuals to make disclosures under the Act.  
 

Page 81



5.16. The new framework will retain the rights of local electors to make formal 
objections to the accounts, but give auditors greater discretion regarding whether to 
pursue an objection.  
 
  
6. IMPLEMENTATION AND NEXT STEPS  
 
6.1. The Government plans do some further work with smaller bodies and their 
representatives on regarding audit arrangements for smaller bodies, to explore 
options for these bodies before firming up proposals, and setting out a preferred 
approach in Spring 2012;  
 
6.2. The Government will hold further discussions with local authorities, other local 
public bodies and the audit sector to flesh out the underlying detail of the framework, 
and how it might be implemented;  
 
6.3. The Government intends to publish a draft Bill for pre-legislative scrutiny in 
Spring 2012, which allows for examination and amendments to be made before 
formal introduction to Parliament; and in advance of introduction of an Audit Bill as 
soon as Parliamentary time allows.  
 
 
 

 
Martin Gould 
Head of the Devon Audit Partnership 

Page 82



Agenda Item 12

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes , 25/01/2012 Audit Committee

	5 Audit Committee Update
	6 Audit Plan
	7 Certification Claims
	8 Good Governance Review Autumn 2011
	Good Governance Review Autumn 2011 Action Plan Appendix 1

	9 Covering Report to Audit Committee
	000 TC IA Plan 2012-13 Report V2

	10 Future of Public Audit Report to Audit Committee
	12 Scale of Fraud & Corruption affecting Torbay Council

